Virginia Region Revitalization
Tobacco Commission

Winter Full Commission Meeting
January 6 - 7, 2020

Homewood Suites by Hilton
700 East Main Street
Richmond, VA






(,{@CU ITINERARY
4o Virginia Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission
(\ h Winter Tobacco Full Commission Meeting
%; Homewood Suites by Hilton Downtown
i DP 3 700 East Main Street, Richmond, VA
January 6 - 7, 2020 -

Accommodations

and
Meetings

MONDAY, JANUARY 6, 2020 — Homewood Suites by Hilton, 700 East Franklin
Street, Richmond

11:30 AM —12:00 PM LUNCH

12:00-12:30 PM SOUTHSIDE ECODEV Committee Meeting
12:45-2:30 PM AGRIBUSINESS Committee Meeting
2:30-4:00 PM SPECIAL PROJECTS Committee Meeting

HOTEL CHECK-IN — 3:00 PM
Hampton Inn & Suites, 700 East Franklin Street

4:15-5:15PM SOUTHWEST ECODEV Committee Meeting

6:30-8:30 PM RECEPTION
Residences at the John Marshall
(aka Hotel John Marshall)

“Marshall Ballroom”
(The neeting location is in walking distance from the hotel. Parking
Garage is located at 13 North 5% Street (between Franklin & Main Street)

TUESDAY, JANUARY 7, 2020 — Homewood Suites by Hilton, 700 East Franklin Street,

-Richmond
9:00-9:30 AM EDUCATION Committee Meeting
9:30-10:30 AM TROF Committee Meeting
10:30-12:00 PM FULL COMMISSION Meeting
| 12:00-12:30 PM LUNCH
1:00 PM DEPART FOR HOME

**% SAFE TRAVEL *#*



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Virginia Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission
Winter Full Commission Meeting
Homewood Suites by Hilton
Richmond
January 6-7, 2020

MEETING LOGISTICS

Itinerary

Commission Agenda
AGRIBUSINESS COMMITTEE

FY20 New Grant Proposals
Extension Request

EDUCATION COMMITTEE

SOUTHSIDE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

Tabled Project Proposals
Project Extension

SOUTHWEST ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
Tabled Project Proposals
SPECIAL PROJECTS COMMITTEE
FY20 New Project Proposals
Tabled Proposals......c.evcvivninieennnes bievssvessherne simtanansbantmanesatenantenndbebtesebbebIRRE
Extension Requests

TROF COMMITTEE

Estimate Appeal
TROF Awards

ADMINISTRATIVE
Financial Summary




AGENDA
FuLL COMMISSION

Tuesday, January 7, 2020
10:30 A.M.

Call-in - 646-558-8656 / Access code: 601-082-667

Homewood Suites by Hilton

700 East Main Street
Richmond, VA
Welcome and Call to Order The Honorable Terry G. Kilgore, Chairman
Call of the Roll Evan Feinman, Executive Director

Approval of 10/10/19 minutes

Agribusiness Committee

Education Committee

Special Projects Committee

Southside Economic Development Committee
Southwest Economic Development Committee
TROF Committee

TROF Update

OSIG Report

Foreign Direct Investment Update

VEDP New Workforce Development Initiative
Other Business

Scheduling of May 2020 meeting

Public Comments

Adjournment

(published on website)

Robert Spiers, Chairman

The Honorable Frank Ruff;, Chairman

The Honorable Danny Marshall, Chairman
The Honorable Thomas Wright, Chairman
The Honorable Bill Carrico, Chairman
The Honorable Terry Kilgore, Chairman
Andy Sorrell, Deputy Director

Evan IFeinman, Executive Director

Evan Feinman, Executive Director

Evan Feinman, Executive Director

Evan Feinman, Executive Director

Evan Feinman, Executive Director



AGENDA

GRIBUSINESS COMMITTEE

———s

Monday, January 6, 2020
12:45 P.M.

Call-in - 646-558-8656 / Access code: 601-082-667

Homewood Suites by Hilton

700 East Main Street
Richmond, VA

Welcome and Call to Order Robert Spiers, Chairman
Call of the Roll Evan Feinman, Executive Director
Approval of the _10/9/19 Minutes (published on website)
HEMP Project Policy Discussion Evan Feinman, Executive Director
FY20 New Grant Proposals Tim Pfohl, Grants Director
Other Business Tim Pfohl, Grants Director

Extension Requests
Public Comments

Adjournment



The Commission teceived fourteen proposals for FY20 Agribusiness funds by the announced due

FY20 Agribusiness

Summaries & Staff Recommendations

January 2020

date in October. Executive summaries of the ptoposals and Staff comments and

recommendations are contained below. The Committee has a balance of $2,597,796, a portion of

which Staff recommends be ptreserved for a Spring 2020 round for hemp processing facilities.
There is also Other Business for a request to extend one active grant.

Re 5 ; ; Requested Staff
#q Oxganization Project Title A(r:lnount Recommends
Abingdon Feeder Cattle Mechanizing Forage Research
28k Assoc. in Southwest Virginia - Phase 2 $11,810 $11,810
3598 f::;fdon FecderCattle | o bribensfn Bt $734400 | $250,000
: ; Cultivating a Sustainable and
3594, | SppalachistSuatsinables | ol Ll Modkiciiial Hedb §225545 |  $185,000
Development gy
Value-Chain in Virginia
Charlotte County e Refer to
3591 | Industrial Development | S Carpet Building $585,000 | Southside
Authority Econ Devel
3607 | Halifax County tndusteml Hemp Researchiand. | g52.000 Table
Extension Program
Refer to
3605 | Halifax County IDA Project Phoenix $250,000 Southside
Econ Devel
3588 | Town of Independence Independence Farmers Market $150,000 $150,000
Controlled Environment i
3500 Institute for Advanced Agriculture; Increasing and L4644 856 $365.,520
Learning and Research Diversifying Agribusiness in $365,520 ?
Southern Virginia
. ] Regional Food System
3593 Insutu'lte it Dadvaneen Development Through A Value $134,034 Table
Learning and Reseatrch : .
Chain Cootdinator
2603 Southern Virginia Food StatFﬁup operating and personal $154,998 $105,537
Hub setvices expenses
Southside Vitginia Fruit | Expanding Produce
3599 | and Vegetable Producers | Aggregation Capacity in $176,000 $176,000
Association Southside Vitginia
Vitoinia C cative Project Manager, SWVA
3502 | ' BHMA LOOpEraty Regional Agribusiness $158,988 $158,988
Extension s
Opportunities
Wl Bl Facilities Renovation and
3606 astifglon Lounty Improvement of Washington $225,000 $135,000
Faitground Inc Count .
ounty Fairgrounds




Joint IDA of Wythe Regional Hemp Fiber

3604 Processing Facility in Wythe $250,000 Table
Conngs Vot County, VA
Total (14 requests) $3,546,295  $1,537,855

Abingdon Feeder Cattle Association
Mechanizing Forage Research in Southwest Vitginia - Phase 2 (#3586)
$11,810 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: A CIBUS Harvester by Wintersteiger was purchased in
2019 using funds from the Virginia Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission, the Abingdon Feeder
Cattle Association, three lending institutions, and four Soil and Water Consetvation Districts. The machine
has alteady been extremely beneficial in conducting three forage reseatch projects for Virginia livestock
producers. One add-on to this harvestet that would improve the accuracy and usability of the results is a
forage sampler (made specifically for this machine). The sampler is designed to take representative samples
as hatvest is conducted. -

Staff Comments and Recommendation: This request suppotts the purchase of an additional piece of
equipment to supplement hatvesting equipment putchased using a §75,538.50 TRRC Agtibusiness award
in 2019. The CIBUS Hatvester was delivered in June and was used to conduct three forage research
projects to benefit Southwest Virginia livestock ptoducets. The cutrent request would provide half of the
funds needed to purchase a forage sampler designed specifically for this particular machine. The sampler is
necessaty to take consistent representative samples as hatvest is conducted. Forage is the largest crop
produced in the region and is a ctitical component of the livestock industty. The research trials will be
conducted at the Southwest Virginia Agticulture Research and Extension Center in Glade Spring. The
results of these trials will be shared at the annual Forage Field Day in August. This event is well attended
(average 120) by farmers from several counties. Wintersteiger, the equipment supplier, provided a quote
documenting the $23,620 total project cost. Half of this amount has been requested from TRRC with
matching funds to be raised from a variety of soutces including Soil and Water Conservation Districts,
many of which also contributed funding for the initial equipment purchase.

Financial Viability Assessment: The premise of this request is to add equipment that will delives
consistent processed hatvest samples for mote reliable lab analysis, benefitting livestock producers across
Southwest through dissemination of the research findings at producer field days as well as Extension
publications. This minimal investment will assist in more productive forage results for hundreds of
ptoducers in multiple TRRC counties.

Staff recommends awatd of $11,810.

Abingdon Feeder Cattle Association
Pastures for Profit (#3598)
$734,400 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: Despite the importance of forage to the animal industry
in Southwest Vitginia, the majority of pastures ate in poor condition. The expense of fettilizer and lime
coupled with the lack of application equipment (throughout the region) make it difficult to make
meaningful improvements. Despite the need for pasture maintenance, row crop and hay fertility programs
take priotity throughout the season. Extreme environmental conditions (2019 for example - above average



precipitation in the spring and drought throughout the fall) take their toll on forage plants. The Pastures
for Profit Program offers producets assistance to make the needed adjustments to soil fertility (lime,
phosphotus, and potassium), seeds for forage stand improvement, and to purchase application equipment.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: This tequest suppotts the creation of a new cost share
program to assist tegional farmers in implementing new forage varieties based upon the research
conducted using the forage equipment putchased in FY19 Agtibusiness grant #3493. Cost shate is
proposed for the purchase of items to assist with adjustments to soil fertility, forage seeds, and application
equipment. These inputs ditectly influence forage production. Optimum forage production results in
increases in animal catrying capacity and profitability. Substantial investment in forage production is often
necessary in ordet to see the results that lead to increased earnings. Assisting producers with the putchase
of application equipment will allow them to make custom fertilizer applications as needed, and less-
affected by the schedules of local fertilizer dealets. The proposed cost share progtam will setve 12
localities (Bland, Buchanan, Dickenson, Grayson, Lee, Russell, Scott, Smyth, Tazewell, Washington, Wise,
and Wythe) and will be administered through the local VT' Cooperative Extension offices. The eligible
purchases proposed in this application include lime and fextilizer (phosphate and potash), forage seeds
(grass and legumes), and application equipment for lime and fertilizer. Cost shate of 1/3 (33%) of eligible
putchases up to a $2,000 per producer limit is proposed. The project, as submitted, would setve a
minimum of 360 producers, assuming each received the maximum amount of cost share. The budget
allocates $720,000 for transfer payments to patticipants to be matched by their contribution which is
shown as $865,000. Consideting that TRRC funds would reimburse on a 33% rate, this figure seems low
compared to the anticipated 66% contribution from participants. The actual match is likely to be much
higher than is reflected in the budget, patticulatly for producers who purchase mote expensive equipment.
A small amount of the budget is allocated for administrative expenses associated with managing the
project (petsonal services $12,960 and supplies and materials $1,440).

Financial Viability Assessment: While there is little doubt that quality forage is necessary to suppott the
region’s cattle industty it seems that many of the proposed qualifying purchases should be considered
annual recurring expenses for fatmets (fettilizet, lime, seeds, etc.) which are not typically priorities for
‘TRRC supported cost shate programs which prefer investment in long-lived equipment and improvements
to farming practices. These items, such as fertilizer/ lime application equipment estimated to cost from
$1,100 up to $15,000, ate the most appropriate uses of TRRC cost share suppott. By limiting the use of
program funds it is conceivable that fewer producers will participate. This factot, along with the grantee’s
history of returning unused cost share funds, suggests that a lower award amount would be sufficient to
gauge interest in this new program. Staff also suggests an amendment to the program’s guidelines to
require that participants be both tesidents and property owners in the region. The proposed guidelines
tequite only that they be residents or property ownets.

Staff recommends award of $250,000 for up to 33% cost-share not to exceed $3,000 per producer,
on capital costs for eligible equipment purchases, and the program guidelines be amended to
require applicants be "resident and property owner in the participating counties" (striking the
word "ot").

Appalachian Sustainable Development

Cultivating a Sustainable and Equitable Medicinal Herb Value-Chain in Vitginia
(#3594)

$225,545 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: Appalachian Sustainable Development (ASD) will
increase the profitability, size and sustainability of the medicinal herb value-chain in Virginia's tobacco
region. ASD will fitst expand access to profitable domestic and international markets for field and forest



grown medicinal herbs that are sustainably produced, by securing purchase orders and conttact farming
agreements. Through training and technical assistance, ASD will expand and suppott a grasstoots
medicinal hetb farmer network to meet growing demand and increase net income. To inform best farming
practices and inctease practice adoption, high value, low acreage, forest farming demonstration plots will
be established. Research conducted at these plots will inform sustainable harvest practices and plant
population assessment protocols for future high-value production. Lastly, expanded commercial hetb
processing equipment will increase the processing capacity and efficiency of ASD's Appalachian Hatvest
Hetb Hub (AHHH) in Duffield, Vitginia, to help more tobacco region farmers profitably meet strict buyer
quality standards.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: This proposal provides a very detailed plan to support
development of a hetb grower network, connect those growers to national buyers of processed hetbs, and
retutn sales revenues to those growers. The majority (83%) of requested funds would support personnel
over a three year period ($187K, including three project staff and the ASD Executive and Finance
Ditectors), with increasing TRRC support in yeats 2-3 as other grants expire including TRRC #3373
which is suppotting this project (Jan 2018 - $40K balance). The request also seeks funding for equipment
($20K), transfer payments to help growers receive cettifications ($10K), supplies/materials ($3K),
travel/training ($5K) and other lesset operating costs. Matching funds are committed from a variety of
public agencies including VDACS and USDA, as well as several ptrivate corporate foundations including
Patagonia and BB&T. Outcomes indicate a baseline of 5 current growers, increasing to 20 in year 1, with
an additional 30 starting in the next year and beyond. Strong suppott is expressed by at least two national
companies intetested in purchasing a ready supply of processed otganic botanicals. Staff suggests that, if
funding is considered, it be focused on ASD staff who ate directly implementing the project (moving the
Executive and Finance Directors who assist in oversight/management to the matching funds side), and
limiting staff suppott to no mote than 50% of salaries and benefits for those three positions over the
coutse of the grant period. This results in a reduction of personnel funding by approximately $40I, with
additional support offered for those smaller requested amounts of equipment and supplies that would limit
the Commission's exposute if the enterprise was ultimately unsuccessful.

Financial Viability Assessment: The proposal includes supporting studies of the latger national market
for forest botanicals, along with support from at least two cotporate buyers. The issue of sustainability
beyond a period of grant funding is a concetn when previous ASD enterprises suppotted by TRRC have
ultimately failed, such as the wood processing facility created several yeats ago in Russell County with
Agribusiness grant assistance. As strong as the market opportunity appeats to be, this entetprise would
appear to be almost completely dependent on continued grant funding, as evidenced by estimated sales
revenue of $275K in 2022 (year three) with $225K COGS, which is well short of an operating margin
needed to fund all operating costs in future years. At Staff's request, ASD has provided additional
information on its plans for sustainably funding the Hetrb Hub enterprise (including project staff) from
operating revenues and/or othet soutces beyond the term of the requested TRRC funding. This includes
co-locating with its nearly 20 year old Appalachian Hatvest facility, engaging a consultant to develop
strategies for minimizing operating expenses and maximizing operating revenues, charging a 10% sales
commission to growers, and securing cotporate buyer investments in support of expanding the number of
growers. Given ASD's longstanding proficiency in securing grant funding from a wide atray of public
agencies and private foundations (including a $1.2M ARC grant for an unrelated project), as well as the
demonstrated support for this project from public and private organizations, thete is some mitigation of
tisk that this enterprise could ultimately fail for lack of adequate margins of revenues vs. operating costs.
Support should be predicated on a viable plan for sustainably funding operational costs.

Staff recommends award of $185,000, based on personnel support not exceeding 50% for the three
project staff positions, and conditioned on provision of an adequate plan for long-term
opetational sustainability. ‘



Chatlotte County Industrial Development Authority
Shaw Catpet Building Renovation (#3591)
$585,000 Requested

Executive Summaty Provided by Applicant: The old Shaw Carpet Manufacturing Building built in
1970, operated in the Town of Keysville, Charlotte County, Virginia, until about 1990, at which time it was
abandoned and left empty by the company. In May 2015, the Charlotte County IDA purchased the

" building at auction for $80,000. Since there was little available building inventory for economic
development opportunities in the County, the IDA considered this purchase a great investment to acquite
a relatively substantial building and lot at a very reasonable price to attract a prospect industry. In May
2019, the Director of the Virginia Growth Alliance and County Administration showed a prospect client,
interested in developing a Hemp Processing Centet, in the Shaw Building. Due to its central location in
the former tobacco tegion, with good transportation access, close to numerous potential growets of hemp,
the Shaw Building became the primary focus for the company.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: Funds ate requested for tenovation and upfit of the circa-1970
~ former Shaw Carpet industrial building in IKeysville, which the company vacated in 1990 and the County
IDA putchased in 2015. The building is expected to be offered to a proposed hemp processing opetation
to be owned by a Tobacco Region-based licensed hemp research grower. Per the project Milestones, the
building is cutrently being assessed for environmental remediation, which would be completed with
funding being tequested from the Vitginia Brownfield program. Match to the requested TRRC-funded
renovations would come from a proposed DHCD Industtial Revitalization Fund application for $500K,
which is due March 1, 2020.- At the time of this application, detailed renovation costs are not known and
were not provided. Also, details of the hemp processing operation (private capital investment, job cteation,
hemp growet supply chain etc), while still subject to confidentiality, were not provided. Staff suggests that,
as this request is solely focused on renovations to a county-owned industtial building, without yet ditectly
suppotting the hemp processing, it is better suited for referral to the Southside Economic Development
program, which typically suppozts development of county-owned industrial sites, and within which there is
currently an available allocation balance of neatly $565IK. There appears to be an adequate timeline to refer
this request for renovations of a County-owned industrial building to the SSED program for a Spring 2020
funding consideration, which would better align with the DHCD IRF funding cycle and announcements,
and enable the renovated building to be matketed to any other prospects in the event the hemp project
does not materialize at this location.

Financial Viability Assessment: Given the current lack of known details on the cost of building
renovations or the ptoject patameters/impacts of the hemp processing operation, this request does not
provide known Agtibusiness outcomes that could justify funding support from this program at this time.
Given the highly competitive natute of IRF programs, with strong statewide demand on those limited
funds, there is little urgency to act now until remediation is completed and renovation plans and matching
funds can be mote accurately undetstood. At such future time as the hemp processing project is
quantified, and TRRC policy regarding support for hemp projects is more firmly established, the hemp
aspect could be resubmitted for future funding consideration.

Staff recommends this tequest be referred to the Southside Economic Development Program.



Halifax County
Industrial Hemp Research and Extension Program (#3607)
$125,000.00 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: Industrial hemp is a new crop for Vitginia farmers that
has the potential for very high net returns per acre and the opportunity to revitalize some of the farming
communities that have previously relied on tobacco. However, the risks associated with hemp production
are great and come with very high production costs, varied recommendations for cultural practices,
unknown pests with limited pest control options, unfamiliar harvest and post-hatvest handling
requirements, a new tegulatory environment, and a presently unsettled marketing system. Proposed project
addtesses many of the production questions faced by growers, conducting research under Vitginia growing
conditions to address the needs of hemp growers and providing information vital to suppott an effective
Extension education program. As fot tobacco, the ultimate goal for industrial hemp in Virginia should be
to develop a teliable, profitable grower base that can suppott a latger hemp industry in the Commonwealth
with buyets, processors, and manufacturets.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: This requests seeks 2 yeats of suppott for two new and two
existing staff, lab equipment and greenhouse upgrades to study greenhouse transplants, field production
and pest management at Southern Piedmont AREC in Blackstone. Other project costs include §40K of
suppotting activities to be conducted by Virginia Tech plant scientists in Blacksburg and $25K of
contracted lab analysis (location tbd), though it is unclear which specific expenses would be incurred from
requited matching funds. The proposal states thete will be 5 participating producers and 25 actes of
research crops planted. Staff has inquired on several details of this request, including justifications for the
budgeted amounts, confirmation that matching funds from Halifax County ($93,750) and VT ($31,250)
have been apptoved, equipment quotes, the outlook for additional state funding to support hemp teseatch,
etc. While the request presents a compelling case that additional research and educational outreach is
needed in the 2020 hemp growing season to addtess significant problems observed in the 2019 growing

~ season, at the time of publication of this repott, answets on those topics were still forthcoming, and as

10

such, Staff lacks adequate information to form a recommendation. Should that information be provided in
advance of the January 6th Committee meeting, Staff will make every reasonable effort to provide an
updated recommendation.

Financial Viability Assessment: The proposal presents a compelling case for additional applied research
by expetts in Southern VA and Blacksburg, and the ability to disseminate findings through Extension field
days, grower wotkshops and publications. However, there is not yet adequate information in hand to form
a Staff recommendation, and the request should be tabled until such time as that information is available.

Staff recommends this request be tabled.

Halifax County IDA
Project Phoenix (#3605)
$250,000 Requested |

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: Project Phoenix will construct and opetate 2 hemp
processing facility in Halifax County. With recent regulatory changes, demand for CBD —an extract of
hemp — has grown explosively. Given its agricultural profile, existing infrastructure, and labor skillsets,
nowhere is better positioned to take advantage than Vitginia’s Tobacco Region. However, the crop’s
economics ate reliant on neatby commercial-scale processing facilities of which none currently exist in the
proposed setvice area, Meanwhile, Notth Carolina is investing rapidly. With extraction capacity standing as
the limiting factor in Vitginia, it is imperative to quickly create the necessary value-add processing
infrastructure before Virginia is left behind by Notth Carolina and Kentucky, both of which are years



ahead in their efforts to develop the hemp market. The Phoenix facility is projected to purchase 850
million in hemp from Vitginia’s former tobacco farmers in just 3 years, with 41 direct employees and
hundreds of ancillary jobs.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: TRRC funds atre requested for upfit of a building to be
putchased by the IDA, upfit and then leased to a proposed hemp CBD oil processing operation. The IDA
has reported it is in the process of secuting an option to purchase an undisclosed building and has enlisted
an appraiser for vetifying that investment by the IDA of potentially up to $2 million. The proposal
included a 10 yeat pro forma and equipment quotes for the hemp processor, and a thorough but
confidential business plan was subsequently provided as well. The processor estimates 68 hemp producers
providing feedstock in the Outcomes section of the proposal, but the 10 yeat pro forma peaks at 43
producers annually by the thitd year of operations. Investment by the company is approximately $1.9M in
equipment and petsonal propetty (e.g. forklifts etc). Beyond those parameters, the project is the subject of
incentive negotiations with VEDP, VDACS and other state funding partners, and as such, Staff elects not
to disclose other potentially confidential aspects of the business plan. More so, as this request is solely
focused on upfits to a County-owned industtial property, and not requesting direct support to the private
hemp processor in the form of equipment or operating funds, Staff suggests this request (as with the
Chatlotte request) is mote appropriate to be considered in the Southside Economic Development
program, where a cuttent available allocation of more than $1.7M could be used to assist this project at
this or a higher level of funding. Staff has discussed this approach with IDA staff and they atre agteeable to
it. '

Financial Viability Assessment: While the estimated Agribusiness Outcomes are provided for hemp
growers who would sell feedstock to the processor, as noted, this request does not directly benefit that
private company. Commission policy for supporting hemp processing projects is yet to be determined, but
the use of the TROF model, which would othetwise be available to these projects, is the appropriate
process to offer performance-based incentives that are equitably-sized to each project's jobs and
investment numbers, and that futute path could be open to the IDA and company at such time as the
Commission adopts policy for ditectly assisting-hemp processors. In that the funds in this request would
not flow directly to the hemp processot, it is appropriate to be referred to Southside Economic
Development, whete it is common practice to support improvements to an IDA-owned building that
could be marketed to othet prospects in the event the hemp project fails to matetialize.

Staff recommends the project be referted to the Southside Economic Development Committee.

Town of Independence
Independence Farmers Martket (#3588)
$150,000 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: The Town of Independence is developing the vacant
propetty located at the cotner of Highway 21 and Highway 58 as a Farmers Market venue and multi-use
recreational facility to encourage incteased farmer and customer participation and toutist visitation. The
Town of Independence and Grayson County have recognized agriculture and toutism as two viable
sources for future economic growth. The recently approved Comprehensive Plan ranks agricultute as the
number one economic development sttategy in Grayson County. In 2011, the Town of Independence was
awatded a technical assistance grant from ARC and EPA to do a community economic development
assessment blueprint. Per the assessment recommendation, the Town purchased the cotner lot in 2013 to
become the site of the first town park and farmers market. In 2019, Independence was awarded the USDA
Business Development grant to assist with a market structure. Commission funding will provide the
additional funding needed for structure construction.

11



12

Staff Comments and Recommendation: The Town of Independence has requested support to
construct a permanent Farmer’s Market in its downtown area. This Market has operated on Town-owned
propetty since 2013 and this will be the location of the petmanent structure. Vety impressive tracking
information was presented in the application to document the visitation and sales outcomes associated
with past matket years. With an established group of nearly 30 membets from Grayson, Catrroll, Wythe,
Smyth, Pulaski, Floyd Counties as well as counties in NC (Alleghany and Surty), the market maintains an
80% producet-only vendor rate. The matket also requites that vendors are “local”, defined as a 100 mile
radius. The open air market operates for 25 weeks duting the summer months and a year-round online
farming market. Annual sales average over $100k earned from average weekly customer counts of 225. It is
estimated that 25% of the visitors are from out of town. In 2018 the market recorded 4,876 visitors, 53
vendors and market sales of $82,199. To ensute products sold at the Matket are raised at the participating
farm, the market manager conducts site visits to view farming operations. The permanent location will
provide assurance of keeping the matket manager for another two yeat petiod, add approximately 8 new
vendots, and increase sales by 35%. The increased sales is estimated to result in an increase of 8% in sales
and meals taxes for the Town. The total project cost is $450,000, documented with a cost estimate from
Hurt and Profitt. Site development will be petformed using $130,000 contributed by the Town and
$25,000 from USDA. USDA will also provide $150,000 for construction. TRRC funds ate tequested for
consttuction. During the construction petiod the Market will be moved to another site to ensure that the
2020 market season is not lost.

Financial Viability Assessment: This is perhaps the strongest farmers market request seen by the
Commission to date, as evidenced by a long track record of operations, site control, well-designed
construction plans, committed funding from the Town and USDA, experienced market management, a
large producer base (50+, with 20-30 patticipating most weeks), a strong schedule of events to attract
customers to the market, and arguably the best tracking system of producer participation, sales and
customets seen in any TRRC-region market.

Staff recommends award of $150,000.

Institute for Advanced Learning and Research

Controlled Environment Agriculture; Increasing and Diversifying Agribusiness in
Southern Vitginia (#3590) '
$644;856 Requested — Revised to $365,520

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: Consumer demand for healthy, local, and pesticide free
produce continues to drive the evolution of the food system. Yeat-around indoor production in controlled
environment agriculture (CEA) addresses each. Regional farmers are ideally suited to adopt this technology
due to their traditionally small farm size and high value crop production. Leveraging the modern
greenhouse space and ag-tech capabilities at IALR, along with the expertise of multiple faculty members at
Virginia Tech, this proposed ptoject will promote CEA to both new and existing farmers across Southern
Vitginia. High value demonsttation crops will include lettuce, hetbs, strawberties, blackbetties, hemp, and
others. Education through confetences, wotkshops, site visits, and a web presence will drive interest. The
pattnership will bring together industry, academia, and producers to establish a CEA innovation and
education center with the overall goals of increasing net farm income and profitability while diversifying
agribusiness in the region.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: As initially submitted, this request sought neatly $645I,
including $436K for 2 post-doc researchets focused on aquaponics (plants) and aquaculture (fish), to be
housed at greenhouses and labs at IALR for 3 years, plus $102K for conferences /workshops, $39K travel,
and $68K supplies. IALR has revised the request to focus only on indoot aquaponic/hydtoponic plant
production (e.g. hetbs, lettuces, berries, vegetables), reducing the total request to $365,520. The revised



request seeks $233K for the aquaponic post-doc, $43K for conducting conferences/wotkshops, $22K for
staff travel, and $68K for greenhouse supplies/matetials. Matching funds from Virginia Tech Plant
Sciences would fund a reseatch associate housed at IALR ($216K), $139K of hydroponic equipment at
TALR, and $20K of supplies/matetials for the IALR-based researchers. Three existing TALR research staff
pattially dedicated to the project would provide an additional $155K of matching funds. Total matching
funds are nearly $573K, exceeding the tequited dollat-for-dollar match. TALR states that the overarching
objective is to provide potential private farm producers with "training, knowledge and skills necessaty,
including assistance with business plans, equipment procurement issues, and facility development to make
informed decisions on whether (to putsue) controlled environment agriculture." IALR acknowledges this
is less a research project as it is a demonstration center, and these ate largely known technologies. The
premise is that Tobacco Region private producers will implement CEA operations based on best practices
learned and demonstrated at this centet. Howevet, no discussion of cost/scale/batriers for producer
implementation, and what the likelihood/estimates of ptivate producer implementation will be. Outcomes
ate somewhat speculative based on the likelihood of producer adoption of CEA, and expression of
producer interest is not provided, although TALR commits to a rigorous sutvey-based analysis of private
participants to assess actual implementation data including sales revenues. Staff notes that a previous
TRRC grant paid for the existing IALR greenhouse ($700K in #2429 for the now defunct Proteos Bio
R&D project).

Financial Viability Assessment: Given the lack of information on costs/batriers and interest in private
producer implementation, this project could be viewed as faitly speculative. However, factors such as the
Deceinber announcement of the Aerofarms indoot food crop production facility, reportedly the largest of
its kind in the world, leads to a ptesumption that the region's proximity to consumer markets suppotts the
case for these types of ptivate enterprises, and IALR's track record of success in educating and suppotting
producers of hemp, tobacco and other crops through its precision agriculture and ISO-cettified analysis
lab (also both suppotted by TRRC gtants), leads to some indication that IALR's atray of technical experts
and resources are being embraced by private farmers/producers as an essential regional resource. The
reduced scope of this request, the limited request for additional long-lived assets, and IALR's stated
commitment to continued funding of the program beyond the requested three-year grant mitigate risk that
the program will be ineffective, as well as putting back into productive setvice the TRRC-funded
greenhouse facility that has been underutilized since the previous R&D project ended.

Staff recommends award of $365,520 contingent on required Match being provided from cash
contributions toward equipping and operations of the new CEA facility at IALR in Danville.

Institute for Advanced Learning and Research
Regional Food System Development Through A Value Chain Coordinator (#3593)
$134,034 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: Consumer demand for local food is on the rise and is
projected to grow in the decades to come, thereby presenting an opportunity for increased farm revenue
for new and existing farmers. However, many farmers lack the time and resources to promote their goods
to potential customets. Simultaneously, many large institutional buyers would like to offet local produce,
meat, and daity to their employees and visitors, but they would prefer not to interact with each farmer
individually. These conditions establish a need for an advocate to facilitate the interaction and drive the
creation of a robust local food system whete farmets’ price points are met while local consumers gain
greater access to theit products. This proposed three-year project seeks matching funding for a value chain
coordinatot position to connect institutional buyers, food hubs, and other putchasers, with farmets to
increase net farm output, income, and diversify agribusiness in the region.



14

Staff Comments and Recommendation: Grant funds ate requested to support 57% of the direct project
costs over three years for a new value chain coordinator position and related costs for travel and supplies.
The applicant identifies the focus of this position would be on connecting institutional buyets, food hubs,
and other potential puschasers of farm products, with the agriculture producers in the region for increasing
their net farm output and income. Match funds are from a $100,000 cash donation made to the Future of
the Piedmont Foundation and secured by the Danville Regional Foundation, and $36,408 from time
conttibutions for existing staff at IALR. A Dan River Region Local Food System Assessment funded by
the DRF in 2017, on behalf of their Health Collaborative, was provided to suppott the application. This
assessment was identified as a first step toward identifying a network of regional stakeholders and
highlighting battiers to patticipation in a local food system. Of the 33 farms that responded to a sutvey,
72% indicated matketing suppott as a battier to increasing production and selling at capacity. Farms
responding wete ptimarily in Pittsylvania County (13) and Caswell County, NC (10), along with ten othet
farms in three VA and two NC counties. Surveys wete also conducted with restaurants (7 responses) and
institutions (3 responses), all located in Danville and Pittsylvania County. During the review of this
application staff questioned the likelihood of the project benefits accruing to a regional group of tobacco
region producers, noting that the majority of the sutvey respondents and the DRF setvice area being
primarily limited to Pittsylvania County and neighboring North Carolina (a ptiotity for the TRRC
Agribusiness progtam is fot projects benefiting producers in at least three tobacco region localities). More
importantly staff had concetns about the lack of specific economic metrics for tracking agribusiness
results, and how responsibilities for the new cootdinator would be structured and how success would be
measuted.

Financial Viability Assessment: While thete is no question that there is an opportunity and regional
interest for brokering services between local producets and buyers, Staff viewed this proposal as mote of a
conceptual project that still needs to be developed. Staff suggests that the project be tabled to allow the
regional work group to wotk on identifying and quantifying baseline metrics that demonstrate a higher
level of regional producer patticipation and buyet interest, with specific goals for increasing purchasing
and producer sales actoss a larger portion of Southern VA, in order to focus the specific work activities
and repottable outcomes for the proposed coordinatot.

Staff recommends this tequest be tabled.

Southern Virginia Food Hub
Start-up operating and personal services expenses (#3603)
$154,998 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: The SVFH addresses several needs of local
agribusinesses. It consists of: a local food grocery, a commercial kitchen, dairy processing room, a local
food deli, and a community classtoom. The grocety will increase the availability of local products to
consumets. The kitchen will be used to transform local products into value-added items. These goods will
then be available for retail through the grocery and deli. The deli will offer ready-to-eat, take home meals
prepated from seasonal local products. The SVFH will also operate a delivery truck that will run a weekly
route among the rural 8 counties served. SVFH is seeking funding for staff and operating expenses during
the 3 year statt-up petiod. This funding is necessary until SVFH is able to become financially self-
sustaining. These start-up opetating funds will allow the time necessary for SVFH to establish consumer
matket awareness as well as develop the necessary producer relationships.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: Grant funds ate requested to support 50% of identified
operating costs over a three-yeat period for the Southern Virginia Food Hub, a start-up nonprofit
enterprise developed to suppott sevetal needs of the agricultural community. Opening in June 2019, the
SVFH has transformed what was previously a derelict building in the heart of downtown South Hill, into a



multifaceted facility offering a local food grocety, commetcial kitchen available to producers and food
entrepreneuts, a local food deli with read-to-eat meals made from local seasonal products, and a dairy
processing room (still in development, to be used for the production of soft cheeses, yogutt, ice cream and
butter). A list of SVHF Local Producets with more than 100 farms and value-added food businesses,
representing thirteen tobacco region counties was included with the application suggesting a very broad
reach for agricultute beneficiaties of this facility. The Commission has provided $320,812 from thtee past
Agtibusiness grants, toward creation and development of the Food Hub, with a $62,000 award in 2019 for
a delivery truck. Other state and federal agencies including DCHD, VDACS, and USDA Rutal
Development have committed over 670,192 in Match. The detailed budget submitted with the application
requests 50% from TRRC across all line items including personnel positions for a chef, baket, and two
grocety clerks; a contract market manager; and utility and other continuous chatges to support operations
of the nonprofit business enterptise. Matching funds were identified to come from revenues generated by
SVFH. Reported revenues from the June opening through November 2019 were provided, showing §761C
of revenues during this petiod with $120K cost of goods sold (COGS), indicating a need for funding
assistance while the brand and customer base is being built. Staff suggests a reasonable budget for the
Commission’s consideration to include $28,275 fot the local foods chef position ($18,850 per year X 3
years with declining support at 75%, 50% and 25% over the three yeats), $36,000 toward the contracted
market operations manager, and $41,262 for continuous chatges for a total of $105,537.

Financial Viability Assessment: The operating deficit in the initial five months can be partially
atttibuted to the Food Hub starting in the middle of a growing season, which reduced the amount of farm
products available for ditrect sale and value-adding processing. It can also be attributed to the start-up of a
new enterptise which is still building customer awareness of its brands and products. There has also been a
transition in leadership, necessitated by a family emergency for the initial leader and visionaty, but the new
management leadership has produced solid financial tracking and operating plans to continue wotking
toward sustainable break-even opetations, and the addition of the dairy processing component should
further enhance expansion of sales tevenues. As with any new start-up enterprise, particularly one that is
so unique in natute, time is needed to establish its role relative to the marketplace and customet base, and
a more clear pictute of the Food Hub's long term viability will emerge after it has been able to opetate
through two or more full growing seasons. To work toward that goal of sustainability, Staff suggests the
Food Hub leadership should be requited to produce and repott a petiodically-updated (at least annually)
well-defined plan and assessment for sustainability. While further assistance in the form of an operating
line of credit may have to be considered by the leadership, Staff acknowledges there is some tisk of a
lengthy runway to sustainability, which is mitigated by the support from the Town and the state and
federal funding partners. Recognizing the complexities involved in the coordination of this multi-faceted
start-up opetation, and the exceptional interest and patticipation from agriculture producets and value-
added entrepreneurs from a large number of Southern Virginia counties, Staff supports the unique vision
of this facility fot setving the agribusiness community and the benefits that will accrue throughout the
region.

Staff recommends award of $105,537, continent on TRRC funds only being disbutsed for up to
documented Match amounts, based on declining suppotrt for identified personnel and operating
costs in yeats two and three, and contingent on development of a well-defined, petiodically
updated plan and assessment for sustainability to be reported annually to funders and key
stakeholders.

15



16

Southside Vitginia Fruit and Vegetable Producers Association
Expanding Produce Aggregation Capacity in Southside Vitginia (#3599)
$176,000 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: The Southside Virginia Fruit and Vegetable Producer
Association (SVPA), based in Chatlotte County, Virginia, is a gtoup of 16 independent small-farm
operatots actoss an under-served 12-county region working cooperatively to aggregate, matket, sell, and
deliver their produce to the wholesale matket. Our growers collectively farm more than 100 actes of
ptoduce, including crops such as sweet cotn, tomatoes, green beans, cabbage, potatoes, squash, and othet
fresh vegetables. We are secking funds to expand our aggregation and storage capacity through the
acquisition and construction of a new facility, the addition of opetrational equipment, and the expansion of
out cooler space. This project is expected to improve the association's operational capacity , allowing for
an inctrease in sales of produce to wholesale customers. This will increase revenue for individual farms,
support farm business development in the Tobacco region, provide additional food and farm jobs, and
improve matket access for Tobacco region producets.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: This project is focused on construction and equipping a new
centrally-located facility in Chatlotte County setving as the aggregation, packaging and distribution center
for a tecently formed producet cooperative. Development of the Southern Vitginia Fruit and Vegetable
Producets Association (SVFVPA), a grasstoots, fatmer-founded and operated grower association, was
botn from the need of Southern Virginia farmets to have access to institutional buyers, and shared
equipment and facilities for aggregating product for sale to wholesale matkets. The cooperative cutrently
operates out of an old fite station in Chatlotte Court House, with a leased refrigerated cooler for cold
stotage from one of the association members. With this application the SVFVPA proposes to construct a
new 80’ X 100 facility (more than three times the size of their current hub) that is designed to
accommodate their expansion plans and address needs for cold and dry storage, sorting and packaging
equipment, offices and loading and distribution. A cutrent business plan provided with the application
identified specific targeted customets, a vatiety of more than twenty fruit and vegetable products currently
available to be soutced from its membership, and focused sales channels for expanding product sales.
Members and growers reptesent seven tobacco region counties - Brunswick, Buckingham, Chatlotte,
Campbell, Halifax, Lunenbutg, and Prince Edward Counties - with the largest representation being from
Charlotte County, and other membets alteady selling regularly to the Amish-tun produce auction in Cullin.
Membets currently grow ~ 100 acres of vegetables and produce collectively that is utilized for wholesale
distribution, with the capacity to expand up to 300 actes based on demand. Additional production facilities
include 10 high-tunnel greenhouses for an expanded growing seasons. Grant funds ate to suppot site
acquisition and development costs ($45,000), and purchase and up-fit of an 80" X 100° metal building
($80,000), equipment ($40,000), and modest amounts for warehouse staff, packaging supplies, and
continuous charges ($11,000). The primaty soutce of Match funds is from USDA Rural Business
Development funds ($126,000) suppotting costs for a latge refrigerated truck and cooler. RBEG funds
were awarded in the Summer 2019 and the order for the truck was placed, with the intention of
accommodating grower needs for the fall harvest. The $93K truck was teceived and paid for in December
2019, after the application to the Commission, and Staff supports this being counted toward the match
requirement. Additional match is for shrink wrapper equipment ($6,000) and the in-kind value of produce
washing and packaging equipment, two bean hatvesters and a sheller ($44,000). The applicant was unawate
that this hatvestet/sheller equipment otiginally purchased with funding from the Tobacco Commission for
the VSU edamame project, and as such is ineligible for meeting the 1:1 match requirement. In recognizing
this concern, SVFVPA identified other contributions expected to be made including an estimated $45,000
in association revenues to be used to cover hited labor costs, and volunteet contributions of association
Jeadetship for administrative responsibilities at 720 hours annually. Estimates wete not ptovided for
association member contributions for operations of the facility, which would be reasonable, if documented
propetly, to also count toward an in-kind match conttibution. A quote was provided for the metal building



and an estimate from Bars Refrigeration was the basis for the funding requested for the cooler. Other cost
estimates included in the application and line item details provided during the review, were from member
expettise in construction, with a commitment for all construction activities to be competitively bid.
Outcome projections following the fitst year of operation in the new facility ate for an increasing from 16
to 40 producets served, and annual sales revenue per producet increasing from $6,250 to $37,500.
Financial Viability Assessment: The cooperative has alteady established its capability for aggregation of
fresh produce for wholesale clients, having secured significant purchase commitments from Produce
Source Pattners, for sale of produce in multiple Food Lions in the Lynchburg area. VAFAIRS has wotked
closely with SVFVPA over the last two yeats with development of their business plan and applications for
funding, and they remain committed to assisting the cooperative to see its success. Lettets of suppott wete
provided by the Chatlotte County offices of VCE, Farm Bureau, and BOS, and several of the farm
business members of the cooperative. Recognizing the success to date of this farmer-operated cooperative,
the identified market opportunity, commitments from tegional buyers, their growing membesship and the
need for a permanent and expanded disttibution centet, Staff is supportive of this request. While there is
always tisk involved in the ongoing opetation of membet-based cooperatives, SVFVPA has, in its
relatively short existence, demonstrated a savvy commitment to connecting its producer membets to food
service buyer channels, retutning 85% of sales revenue to its producers, and chatging 15% for its services
in order to sustain its operations. None the less, TRRC should protect its security interest in the facility by
recotding a lien on the propetty to be developed.

Staff recommends award of $176,000, contingent on TRRC funds only being disbutsed for up to
documented Match amounts, and competitive bidding of all professional contracts for
construction. '

Vitrginia Cooperative Extension
Project Manager, SWVA Regional Agribusiness Opportunities (#3592)
$158,988 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: A Project Manager position dedicated to addressing
southwest Virginia regional agribusiness opportunities will advance core strategies identified through
regional planning effotts and produce specific actions to drive Southwest Vitginia’s agticultural and
economic growth. By working closely with Extension agents, educational institutions, clients, and partners
in the region, this position will capitalize on existing strengths and collaborative pastnerships to advance
agricultural enterprises throughout 13 counties and three cities. The Project Manager will help identify new
opportunities and assess the viability of these new ventures; alleviate battiets to entty; help producets
pursue niche oppottunities, and; facilitate start-up and expansion of local businesses, among other
activities. Agriculture and food/beverage manufactuting were identified as priorities in the GO Vitginia
Region 1 Growth & Diversification Plan published in August 2019.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: The position proposed in this application is the result of
numerous discussions between regional funding agencies who identified a lack of leadetship capacity
needed to progress several agticultural initiatives, including some previously funded through TRRC. The
need to support a full time position tasked with moving these projects forward, while also working with
regional agticultural stakeholdets to develop new projects, was determined to be essential. The Project
Manager will wotk closely with extension agents, educational institutions, clients, and other public and
private pattnets in the 13 county region. Due to the success of similat positions in other patts of the state,
it was determined that V'I' Coopetative Extension would be the most likely organization to initially house
this position. The funds requested in this application will suppott the salary and benefits for the Project
Managet for the initial three year petiod. Matching funds of $58,988 are proposed from Extension
primarily for unrecovered F&A for three years. An application has also been submitted to GO Vitginia for

17



18

$100,000 to match TRRC’s suppott for the Progtam Manager salary and benefits. Due to GO Vitginia’s
restrictions on the eligibility of matching funds from state-funded organizations (including TRRC) as
required match for their grants, additional financial support will also be needed to fully fund the position.
A more specific job desctiption with a defined scope of work and deliverables will also need to be
developed.

Financial Viability Assessment: This new position has been an expressed goal of several Southwest VA
parttners for more than a year, including the leadership for the GO Vitginia region. The need is based on
several agribusiness development opportunities that have languished for lack of qualified project leadetship
that is dedicated full-time to the implementation of those developments. Examples include the meat
slaughter operations proposed in Carroll and Russell, grain growing on reclaimed mine land being
supported by InvestSWVA etc. Housing the proposed position under Extension brings that otganization's
resources, expettise and project contacts into the work activities, and Extension has committed to
tracking and reporting on project activities and outcomes using its established systems. Cutrent matching
funds and long term funding sustainability remain concetns, and to some extent this is a pilot to
demonstrate results over the three year project petiod. Extension has suggested that solid results at that
time would make a case for adding the position to its annual staffing budgets, along with support from
localities (as they support funding for current Extension agents). Staff suggests that frequent reporting by
the person who holds this position (at least monthly if not bi-weekly) to project funders and key
stakeholders on the project pipeline and activities is a best practice that has been successful in the
Commission's two regional effotts to attract foreign direct investment, and should be required in this
project. Contingent on secuting adequate matching funds, this regional "value-added" technical assistance
oppottunity is a reasonable step forward that could result in multiple new private investments in
agriculture and agribusiness ptojects across SWVA, as well as securing and administering funding for
individual projects from federal, state and private investors.

Staff recommends award of $158,988 contingent on secuting required matching funds to support
at least 50% of costs for the new position, and on frequent periodic reporting by this position to
funders and key stakeholders.

Washington County Fairground Inc

Facilities Renovation and Improvement of Washington County Faitgrounds
(#3606)

$225,000 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: Washington County Faitgrounds will renovate and
improve the following sttuctutes and grounds as follows: 1) Repair and upgrade electtical witing in
livestock barns as well as Building A and Building B. The lighting will be replaced with LED fixtures. 2)
Outside electrical and lighting upgtade throughout fairground. 3) Concrete the graveled flooring of
Building B. 4) Paving of road and graveling of patts of roads throughout main faitground and parking area
as well as parking area for livestock trailers around barns. 5) Replace roll up doors on barns and Building
A. 6) Purchase livestock pens and sale arena for Barn Building E. 7) Repair and upgtade livestock wash
racks and fencing. 8) Purchase of tractot and atena equipment for taking care of barn surfaces between
rentals/events.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: Funding is requested to support half of the costs associated
with making 2 numbet of upgtades and tepairs to the Washington County Fairgrounds in Abingdon.
These activities include replacing the worn cattle sales arena and cattle holding pens and updating the
lighting in the facilities. Upgtades will be made to the electrical systems and the graveled floor of one
building will be replaced with conctete. Improvements (paving and graveling) to sections of roads and
parking lots on the propetty will also take place. A tractor and other arena equipment will be purchased to



help maintain the propezty between events. Other improvements such as replacement of doors, upgraded
livestock wash racks and fencing are also planned. Despite being used consistently for much of the year for
vatious regional events, the property has not received any major improvements in mote than 40 years (20
for the livestock facilities). With newer facilities, such as the APEX Center in Wytheville, offering modetn
spaces to host similar events, these upgrades are ctitical to maintain a competitive position for attracting
regional events, and a better experience for users and attendees. The applicant provided a substantial list of
events which attract visitors from a wide geographical atea, Examples of these include a winter rodeo held
January through March with attendance ranges of 400-600 visitors, the Tti-State Hosse and Mule Spring
sales in April and October with patticipants from 10 states, regional 4-H and FFA events. Cattle sales such
as the Scott County Cattleman’s Premium Assuted Heifer Fall Sale attract buyers from 4 states and the
SWVA Finest Angus Sale from 5 states. These events collectively result in the potential for significant
economic benefit in the Town of Abingdon, although this was not quantified in the application. Matching
funds of $225,000 ate to be provided from the applicant, however it appears that much of this is yet to be
taised. Documentation was provided showing approximately $85,000 of funds currently available fot the
project.

Financial Viability Assessment: The Commission has previously assisted the Fairgrounds with funding
to construct a second access entrance road, which was successfully completed a decade ago. The requested
improvements include a mix of normal maintenance and replacement work such as teplacing the existing
roll-up doors and switching lighting to LED, in addition to significant new upgrades in flooting,
equipment, etc. Staff suggests focus for any TRRC funding be placed on the latter, assuming adequate
required matching funds can be secured. A review of the budget helped Staff identify at least $135,000 of
activities that fall in the significant upgrade category, including pouring a concrete floor in Building B
($25K, currently gravel), the cattle sale arena and holding pens for Building E ($70K) and new tractor and
arena working equipment ($40K). A pattial award, directed to no more than 50% of costs that can be
justified as significant new upgtades, will also assist the applicants in meeting the requited matching funds,
of which they demonstrate they have $85K in hand. Staff notes that a current Commissionet is a recent
past president of the Fairgtounds, and his spouse was involved in submitting this request, so Staff and the
applicants have exetcised cate in ensuring that other Fairground officers are responsible for grant
administration should funding be approved.

Staff recommends award of up to $135,000 for 50% of significant new upgrade and equipment
expenses.

Joint IDA of Wythe County, VA
Regional Hemp Fiber Processing Facility in Wythe County, VA (#3604)
$250,000 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: Vitality Farms LLC (VF) is the project of a family with
multiple yeats of expetience growing hemp in Wythe County and with multiple generations of farming
experience generally. Additional expertise is derived from wotked with the University of Vitginia and being
licensed growers for several years. Three growing cycles of industrial hemp have been successful with the
ctop hatvested with regular hay equipment. VF's proposal is twofold. Fitst, the company will purchase
seed in bulk and distribute it for regional growets use, then pay these farmers based on productivity.
Principals will setve as educators, expett liaisons, and marketing distributors of the products produced for
fibet. No CBD oil ot similar products ate patt of this plan. Secondly, to provide for vertical integration
and to add value to the agricultural product, VF will establish a hemp fiber processing facility in Wythe
County. The closest like facilities are in Colorado and Canada.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: This hemp fiber processing project was announced by the
Governor and the locality in late-October 2019, with 13 new jobs and a $894K private investment to be

19



20

opetated by a licensed hemp grower who partnered with UVA during the research phase. It does not
appeat to meet the $750K taxable capital investment threshold required in TRRC Agtibusiness Program
Guidelines to justify the requested $250K grant, because per the budget $725IK of the indicated private
investment is stattup opetating capital for seed purchase and personnel, and only $350K is equipment
(including this $250K tequest), with $25K from each of VDACS AFID and County funds for equipment.
‘The IDA requested TROF in 2019 for the project, and the calculated offer was §65K grant + $65K loan
for 24 new jobs and a $450K taxable private capital investment. The proposal states that 2 buyers are
committed to putchase the company's processed hemp fiber, with an additional potential buyer in
negotiation. A list of 50+ growers is provided, with the majority (40+) located within the Tobacco Region.
Pending the Agribusiness Committee's approval of a policy for equitably addressing hemp processing
projects based on each project's jobs and investment parameters, Staff suggests that using the TROF
formula calculation for grant+loan incentives is an appropriate and consistent model for supporting
ptivately-owned hemp processing projects, along with the requisite petformance agreement.

Financial Viability Assessment: Commission policy for supporting hemp processing projects is yet to
be determined, but the use of the TROF model, which would otherwise be available to these projects, is
the arguably the most apptopriate process to offer performance-based incentives that are equitably sized to
each project's jobs and investment numbers. Given the performance requirements of the AFID grant to
purchase feedstock from Vitginia growets, thete is adequate protection through the AFID grant
agreement, and a potential TRRC performance-based agreement, to proceed with an grant+loan ot
interest-free loan as pet the TROF calculations, while generating annually-recurring new income for
Tobacco Region hemp growets as per the Agribusiness program objectives. However, unlike the two
previously-discussed hemp processing requests (Chatlotte and Halifax) this request seeks funds to flow
directly to the ptivate hemp processor, Until Commission policy is finalized, Staff suggests this request be
tabled for reconsideration in a Spring 2020 funding competition specifically announced for hemp
processing facilities.

Staff recommends this request be tabled for a Spring 2020 round for hemp processing facilities.

OTHER BUSINESS

Pittsylvania County 7
SoVA Vineyard Development and Expansion to Support Vitginia’s Wine Industry (#3102)
Request for extension to January 12, 2022

In January 2016, the Commission approved an $811,526 grant award to support a new Agribusiness
initiative designed to significantly expand grape production in the tobacco region and to address ctitical
shortages for the wine industty of the Commonwealth. The project represents a partnership with the state
viticulturist Dr. ‘Tony Wolff with Vitginia Tech/VCE, Vitginia Viticulture Association, Institute for
Advanced Leatning and Research, and Virginia Cooperative Extension’s Central and Southwest Districts.
Management of the vineyard program transitioned to TALR in July 2018, which followed multiple delays
due to changes in staffing. IALR tepotts 37 actes of vineyards under cost-share agreements with five
existing vineyards and four new vineyards; and 41 landowners /vineyatrds having expressed interest in
consideration for patticipating in the program. Recognizing that commitments under the cost-share
agreements fot new vineyard actes to be established and the normal project cycle for grower patticipation
requires 18-24 months, Pittsylvania County on behalf of IALR is requesting a two year extension, in order
to continue to market the program to those who have already expressed interest and to new patticipant
interests. ’

Staff recommends approval of an extension to January 12, 2022,



AGENDA
EDUCATION MEETING

Tuesday, January 7, 2020
9:00 A.M.

Call_-in - 646-558-8656 / Access code: 601-082-667

Homewood Suites by Hilton

700 East Main Street
Richmond, VA
Welcome and Call to Order The Honorable Frank M. Ruff, Chairman
Call of the Roll Evan Feinman, Executive Director
Approval of the _10/10/19 Minutes (published on website)
Talent Attraction Program Update Stephanie Kim, Finance Director
FY 20-21 Workforce Financial Tim Pfohl, Grants Director
Aid Timeline & Funding
Other Business Evan Feinman, Executive Director

Public Comments

Adjournment

21



22

AGENDA

SOUTHSIDE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
COMMITTEE MEETING

Monday, January 6, 2020
12:00 P.M.

Call-in - 646-558-8656 / Access code: 601-082-667

Homewood Suites by Hilton
700 East Main Street
Richmond, VA -

Welcome and Call to Order The Honorable Thomas Wright, Chairman
Call of the Roll Evan Feinman, Executive Director
Approval of the _9/30/19 Minutes (published on website)
Tabled Project Proposals Sarah C’apps, Southern QOffice, Grants

Program Adminisirator
Project Extensions Sarah Capps, Southern Office, Grants

Program Administrator
Other Business Evan Feinman, Executive Director

Public Comments

Adjournment



FY2020 Southside Economic Development

Summaries and Staff Recommendations
January 6, 2020

Following the announced July 25, 2019, application deadline, the Committee met in South Boston on
September 30, 2019 to discuss award recommendations. Two applications were tabled by the Committee
to be reconsidered at the meeting scheduled fot January 6, 2020. Original recommendations for both are
presented below. Three previously funded grants are requesting extensions and are included under Other
Business.

TABLED APPLICATIONS
Req ; T 2 ; Allocation | Requested Staff
4 Locality Organization Project Title Avmilatis Assvonnt Rec
Halifax War Memotial
3581 Halifax | Town of Halifax Heritage Tourism Site $1,754,402 $179,000 $0
Enhancement Project
Harris Memorial Armory
3579 | Nottoway | Nottoway County Restomition Project $856,152 $50,000 $0

HALIFAX (1 proposal for available allocation of $1,754,402)

Halifax, Town of
Halifax War Memorial Heritage Toutism Site Enhancement Project (#3581)
$179,000 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: The Town of Halifax is applying for Tobacco
Commission funding to supplement secuted VDOT funds to extend decorative street lighting, signage,
and landscaping around the Halifax County War Memorial connecting it to the Halifax Coutthouse Square
through safer pedesttian crosswalks and better ADA sidewalk access whete existing parking/futute
patking areas can be better utilized within the Town of Halifax Court House Historic District. In 2001, the
County and Town of Halifax began a revitalization project to improve downtown by providing an
attractive, pedestrian-friendly environment.The Halifax Downtown Mastet Plan was completed in 2003 to
setve as a vision for the future of downtown and as a guide for phased funding, design and imptrovements
to roadways, parking and pedesttian access fot business and public facilities, including the heritage toutism
sites at the Halifax War Memorial and Halifax Courthouse Squate, a stop on the Virginia Civil War Trails-
"Lee's Retreat" self-guided driving tour.

Staff Comments and Recommendation (September 30, 2019): This VDOT-funded project aims to
suppott economic vitality in the Town of Halifax through improvements to the approach cortidots and
access to the downtown cultural sites and commercial atea in the Town of Halifax Court House Historic
District. The goal is to improve traffic flow, increase public parking and provide for better pedestrian
citculation. VDOT has approved $463K for the project, and TRRC grant funding would be used fot
additional project costs reptesented as "streetscaping” related to construction costs for pedesttian

23



24

crosswalks, lighting, signage, landscaping and ADA sidewalk access areas designed to connect to existing
and future parking ateas. The downtown project area includes two sites - the historic coutthouse and the
wat memorial - that are part of Vitginia’s Civil War Trail, purportedly drawing visitors from outside the
region, although visitor numbers ate based on Town population as a percentage of all Vitginia population
and historic site visitation (e.g. no visitor data specific to the memorial site is provided). Construction
bidding is expected to occur in January 2020, with construction scheduled to start in March 2020 and
targeted for completion in Match 2021. The applicant notes that accessibility improvements ate ctitical to
increasing visitor numbers and visitor spending, recognizing that many of the visitors to the Civil War
Trail and War Memorial are disabled and accessibility is impottant. Histotically, Staff has limited
recommendations for capital improvement investments for tourism destinations to those that can
demonstrate the ability to attract and measure new national and international visitors and their spending.
This level of toutism data was not available for the Town's histotic disttict, or the Memorial specifically.
While Staff does not dispute that streetscape amenities improve the aesthetics of a community for
residents and visitors, we suggest that suppotting this request could constitute a precedent for funding
streetscape improvements that are adjacent to visitor sites, relieving localities of the local VDOT match
requitement, with no measutable direct cortelation between streetscape amenities and visitation to specific
destination sites such as museums.

Staff recommends no award.

Staff Comments (Januaty 6, 2020): Additional information was provided by the Town of Halifax to
address questions raised by the committee. This includes confirmation that there is no “Main Street USA”
grant program for this type of project, as was mentioned in the previous Committee meeting. Based on the
original application and subsequent information, Staff’s Comments and Recommendation remain
unchanged from the initial Staff Report, as shown above.

Financial Viability Assessment: While Town leadetship has worked diligently to fund millions of dollats
of downtown imptovements, and to defend this request as supporting those tevitalization efforts, TRRC
Staff remains strongly committed to keeping Economic Development funds focused on tourism
destinations of national/international impotrtance and intetest to out-of-region visitors. Streetscape
improvements are an enormously expensive proposition that has been funded for decades by the VDOT
Enhancement program (detived from Federal Highway funding) matched with local government funds.
Staff strongly believes maintenance and improvement of public rights-of way such as streets and sidewalks
is a responsibility of those agencies and localities, and should not become a new funding priority for the
Commission. Staff’s recommendation of no award remains unchanged.

NOTTOWAY (1 proposal for available allocation of $856,152)

Nottoway County
Harris Memorial Atmory Restoration Project (#3579)
$50,000 Requested

Executive Summatry Provided by Applicant: The core concept of the Hartis Memotial Armory
Restoration Project is to develop a multi-use/educational center for Southside Vitginia focusing on the
counties of Nottoway, Amelia, Lunenbutg, Dinwiddie and Brunswick with Southside Virginia Community
College, Longwood Univetsity, and other institutions of higher learning to offer our communities
oppottunities to entoll in and take associate degree courses, graduate coutses, and technical training
programs. There would be oppottunities for membets of the community to access literacy classes and
reading development for youth. Restoration will provide a vatiety of spaces from classtoom sized tooms
to large, open meeting spaces. Additionally, employers will be able to offer opportunities for coutses



leading to technical certifications that will make students better prepared for modern workplaces. The
histotic building's usage will be expected to have a notable positive economic impact on the Town of
Blackstone due to the proximity to the business district.

Staff Comments and Recommendation (September 30, 2019): The historic circa-1930s Harris
Memorial Armoty is located in downtown Blackstone and has been owned by the Town for 30+ years. It
has been the subject of testotation efforts for a number of yeats, including a DHCD-funded feasibility
study completed in 2016. More recently, occasional community events have been held in the Atmoty, as
evidenced by Facebook postings by a local nonprofit group of community volunteers who have been
hosting events, fundraising, and making repaits to the structure. The 2016 study proposed potential uses
for the Armory as a learning center and multi-putpose event space. It estimated renovation costs at §3
million-plus, to be partially funded by historic tax credits. Staff notes the roof repair estimate that is the
basis of this request is dated 2001 and has asked if a more recent assessment of the roof and building have
been done. The interior of the Armory ptimatily houses a large gymnasium with a small stage, balcony and
ancillary facilities such as restrooms. As such, the interior does not offer a layout conducive to a modern
educational facility with multiple classtooms, labs etc., and in fact is arguably best suited as a community
events and athletics space. Moreovet, the proposal lacks evidence of a financing plan for renovations and
commitments from accredited post-secondaty educational providets to offer workforce training in the
Armory, which negatively impacted the scoring of the proposal. Staff further notes that SVCC offets a
robust atray of wotkforce training (including GED, power line worket, truck driver, diesel mechanic etc.)
less than four miles away on Fort Pickett. While Staff commends the volunteers for their dedication to
preserving and reputposing this unique historic structure, it does not appear that funding roof repaits for a
facility that is most likely to setve as a community center aligns with TRRC economic development
funding priorities and outcome metrics. Staff has discussed this project with partner community
development agencies for potential assistance from those state and federal resoutces, which are mote
approptiately aligned with the Armory's ultimate uses.

Staff recommends no award.

Staff Update (January 6, 2020): The applicant has communicated that there is no additional information
in the form of an update.

Financial Viability Assessment: As stated previously, the Armory is a significant historic asset for the
Town, however, the stated intention to use it as an education center lacks supporting assessments of
training needs in the county, in-demand careers that area employers are finding hatd to fill, financing and
opetational plans, ot any significant commitment by accredited educational providers. Likewise, the
building — which is primarily comprised of a large gymnasium - is ill-suited to be a robust educational
facility. Staff's tecommendation of no award remains unchanged.

OTHER BUSINESS

Sussex County
Route 602 (Cabin Point Road) Sewer and Water Line Extension (#3125)
Request for 5% Year Extension through January 12, 2021

This $290,073 grant award was approved January 2016, to suppott infrastructure costs for water and sewer
extensions to serve the Cabin Point Road Industrial Patk. There remains a balance of $103,792.79 on the
TRRC project account. In May 2018, the Commission approved an expanded scope with a fourth year
extension allowing grant funds to be used to cover up to 50% of estimated costs for clearing and grubbing,
wetlands delineation and permitting, and stormwater management facilities to serve the site. Under

25



26

December 11, 2019, letter the County indicates delays with approvals from DEQ), which caused delays and
as indicated by the County those issues have now been resolved. Where letter from the County request an
extension through July 2020, staff recommends approval of a full additional one-yeat extension to allow
sufficient time for bidding and consttuction contract work to be completed.

Staff recommends approval of a 5" year extension through January 12, 2021,

Prince Edward County
Prince Edward County Industtial Access Road (#3127)
Request for 6t Year Extension through January 12, 2022

This $49,080 grant was apptoved in January 2016 to support a portion of estimated $1,058,650 costs for
construction of an access road into the Prince Edward County Industtial Park. The full balance remains in
the TRRC project account. A total of $571,960 of Commission funds are committed undet three grants to
suppott this project -- another SSED grant for $194,485 (#3145), as well as a $328,395 Special Projects
grant award (#3089), both of which wete previously extended through May 24, 2020 and will require
additional extensions in May. TRRC gtants ate primatily being matched by VDOT Access Road funds and
investments by the County. In September 2019, the County proceeded with theit VDO'T application. The
VDOT funding is expected to be apptoved by the Commonwealth Transportation Board in Januaty 2020,
and the County has indicated that an additional 12-18 months will be needed to complete consttuction
activities. To allow sufficient time for this work, the County is requesting an extension for two additional
yeats to January 12, 2022.

Staff recommends approval of an extension to January 12, 2022.

Roanoke River Rails to Ttrails, Inc.
Lawrenceville Corridor Acquisition Project (#3038)
Request for 6th Year Extension through May 21, 2021

This $285,960 grant was approved in May 2015, to support acquisition of 2.8 miles of lineat trail segment
connecting the Town of Lawtenceville with 17 miles of the existing Tobacco Heritage Trail; and to
suppott costs related to trail construction. The propetty acquisition from Notfolk Southetn was completed
in 2017, with Notfolk Southern negotiations and theit requitements for detailed surveys and boundary line
desctiptions taking longer than initially anticipated. There remains a balance of $50,960 on the TRRC
project account. TRRC received a request in Decembert, for a sixth year extension to allow these funds to
remain available to suppott eligible trail construction and contractual expenses; and to be used toward
meeting the Match requitement for a VDOT Enhancement Grant cutrently under review. Following the
land acquisition, the project was delayed further when an October 2017 application to VDOT was not
funded, despite it having scored well in the competitive process; and the RRRT/Town of Lawrenceville
was required to wait a year to reapply. A new application to VDOT requesting $589,765 was submitted in
September 2019, and an awatd decision is expected to be made in Match with final approval in June 2020.
RRRT is requesting a 6" yeat extension through May 21, 2021, in order for funds to temain available to be
used toward a portion of the $117,953 Match requirement for the VDOT awatd.

Staff tecommends approval of the 6" yeat extension to May 21, 2021, contingent on the September
2019 application to VDO being approved for funding in 2020.



AGENDA

SOUTHWEST ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

COMMITTEE

‘Monday, January 6, 2020
4:15 P.M.

Call-in - 646-558-8656 / Access code: 601-082-667

Homewood Suites by Hilton

700 East Main Street
Richmond, VA

Welcome and Call to Order
Call of the Roll
Approval of the 10/9/19 Minutes

Tabled Project Proposals

Out of Cycle Project Request
Other Business
Public Comments

Adjournment

The Honorable Charles “Bill” Carrico, Chairman
Evan Feinman, Executive Director
(published on website)

Sara Williams, Southwest Olffice, Grant
Program Administrator

Tim Pfohl, Grant Director

Evan Feinman, Executive Director

27



28

FY20 Southwest Economic Development

Summaries & Staff Recommendations
January 2020

The Commission received project proposals in July for the FY2020 Southwest Economic
Development progtam, two of which were tabled by the Committee in October, and are scheduled
to be reconsidered on January 7™, Executive Summaties and Staff Comments/Recommendations
are included below. The SWED Committee has a curtent balance of $805,541 to address these two
proposals:

Req e . : Requested Staff
" Organization Project Title Amount Recommends
3569 | Town of St. Paul Lytic Project, Phase 11 $349,600 $349,600
. Refer to
3571 | University of Visginia | OV & Wise Southwest 182,292 Competitive
FOURSight (revised) :
Education

Town of St. Paul
Lyric Project, Phase II (#3569)
$349,600 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: The Lyric Project is an integral part of the region’s
asset-based community/economic development strategy. By having the ability to host
meetings/breakout sessions for 200+ attendees in eight different rooms and use the
stage/auditorium seating, the Lyric will be a unique venue that will attract a vatiety of visitors. Once
complete, St. Paul and the region will have a destination feature normally only found in metro areas-
the ability to have a complete multi-day visit that includes cultural and outdoor recteation
expetiences without having to get in ones’ vehicle. The $349,600 requested from the Tobacco
Region Revitalization Commission funds for the Lyric Project Phase II project will be used fot the
construction/installation of the Lyric Theatet’s new meeting rooms. The Lyric Theatet will further
the region’s goal of suppotting local businesses, attracting a vatiety of visitors, and advances the
TRRC’s Strategic and Funding Priotity V- Community Assets and Opportunities.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: Funding is requested to begin Phase 2 of a 3 phase,
$3.4M total renovation to the historic Lyric Theater in downtown St. Paul. This project is patt of the
ongoing revitalization of the Town which has benefited greatly from the development of the TRRC-
funded Spearhead Ttails and the Western Front Hotel, along with other outdoor recreation
opportunities and visitor-based businesses. In addition to serving as an entertainment venue, the
Theater will also contain much needed meeting space to accommodate large groups and conferences
which cannot cutrently be accommodated elsewhere in Town. The Westetn Front Hotel, while
providing an attractive lodging option for these groups, does not have the types of amenities ot
space to host these events. A pottion of this request ($184,000) will be used to putchase the
pattitions and walls needed to develop breakout rooms in the meeting facilities. The remainder of
the request ($205,600) will be used for Phase 2 renovation for mechanical, electtical and plumbing
wortk. Phase 1, which focused on facade and structural repair and stabilization, is largely complete.




The phase cost approximately $480,000 and was funded through grants from ARC ($300K) and
VCEDA ($40,000) as well as Town conttibutions ($90,000+), and VA Main Street funding. To meet
the estimated $1.2M Phase 2 cost, TRRC funds will be combined with an additional approved ARC
grant ($200K) and additional Town funding ($100K). A $600K IRF application is pending with
DHCD and reptesents a latge portion of the funding needed to complete this phase. The Town also
plans to seek funding from various foundations (Dominion, Slemp, etc), USDA, local conttibutions,
etc. to complete the project. Historic tax credits will also be used during Phase 3, which will
complete interior furnishings, equipment and fixtures. Outcomes ate estimated at 3,000 visitors pet
year resulting in $56,000 in revenue from ticket sales. The project will create five jobs with average
salaties of $27,500. The requested amount, though larger than the Wytheville and Lebanon theater
requests, is just over 10% of the overall project budget and is well-leveraged by substantial funding
from other state and federal agencies. While outcomes are more modest than the Wytheville theater
project, they seem approptiately sized to visitor amenities in St. Paul and consistent with those in the
Lebanon theatet project. Staff suppotts the focus of TRRC funds on the build-out of meeting space
that is sorely lacking in St. Paul, and will enable growth of cotporate and other business and group-
related visitation.

December 2019 update: This project was tabled in October 2019 partly due to the uncertain status
of the remainder of the funded needed to complete Phase 2 renovations. Since that time the project
has received a $400k IRF award. While this demonstrates additional funding committed for this
phase of the project, it is less than the §600k IRF application presented in the TRRC application. It
is not clear what soutces will be used to fully fund the remainder of the project.

Financial Viability Assessment: The Town has now secured $700K toward the $1.2M cost of
phase two through commitments by ARC, DHCD and the Town. Commission apptoval of this
request would bring committed funding for this phase to 87% of the estimated costs, with
foundations being apptroached for the $150K balance of the phase. Historic tax credits and private
foundations are being targeted to complete the project in phase three. While there is some risk that
phase three funding is not yet committed and could stall the project, to date the Town has
commendably committed its own funds while aggressively pursuing all other appropriate soutces for
this type of project. Project completion is not ensured at this point, and may require additional
requests to the Commission and other now-committed fundets, but the significant commitments
made by several fundets to get the project to this point mitigate the risk that this project will be
allowed to languish unfinished.

Staff recommends a grant award of $349,600 contingent on commitment of funds required to
complete Phase 2 construction.

University of Virginia
UVa-Wise Southwest FOURSight (#3571)
Request revised to $484,292

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: UVa-Wise proposes to build a Southwest Virginia-
based teleworking wotkforce in cybetsecurity and outfit it with technology and market access to
become the first opetation in the countty to apply a new decentralized labor model to solve the
national crisis in cybersecutity talent shottages. This model has the potential to reduce the risk of
cybersecurity attacks, such as ransomware, that today are unchecked in many governments and
smaller entetprises actoss the country. The College and its partner, FOUR18 Intelligence Cotp., an

29



30

emerging Virginia cybersecutity company, will replicate FOUR18’s pathfinder program alteady
underway at Bastern Kentucky University to cteate a sustainable cyber workforce in Southwest
Vitginia, supplying it also with cutting edge collaborative cyber analysis technology to enable it to be
first to market with this novel model and to grow it through national marketing partners including
Amazon Web Services and federal agencies that have alteady performed pilots and requested new
proposals.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: Decembet 2019 update: This request, otiginally
submitted for $750K and increased to $1,005,127.89 in subsequent budget documents received in
August, was tabled at the October 2019 Committee meeting. Funds ate requested for an 11 month
project petiod that would suppott cybersecurity training and four-month internship experiences for
an initial cohott of "non-technology" UVA-W students rectuited from psychology, business and
criminal justice majors. The latger objective is to establish a UVA-Wise program at Oxbow Center
in St. Paul that would annually train 20-25 students for temote teleworking positions with federal
contractors, communities and ptivate businesses to search for and defend against cyber secutity
attacks. The private sector project pattnetr (FOUR18 Intelligence Cotp.) is a cybetsecutity company
based in Notthetn Virginia which was identified based on its work in a current ARC-funded parallel
effort in Fastern Kentucky and a project in South Louisiana focused on protecting small businesses
from cyberattacks. The intended outcomes in the project petiod are to identify 25 patticipants in the
pilot cohott and provide hybrid online/face-to-face training and wotk-based internships. Program
completers will sit for the nationally-recognized CompTTA Security+ cettification and be awarded a
UVA-W 6-hout cettificate. It is anticipated that the 12 highest petforming students will then begin
three-month apprenticeships with employets to be identified during the project, while the other 13
will begin entry-level I'T jobs averaging $40I annually. Since being tabled, Staff has been in frequent
communication with UVA-W and FOUR18 to discuss changes to the project, in particular to the
budget, to bettet align the objectives of the project with TRRC funding priorities and budgetary
constraints. The latest budget was received in December 19th and reduces the requested amount to
$482,292 with slightly more than half of that amount ($246K) to be used to contract with FOUR18
to deliver cyber training, candidate recruitment and apprentice job placement with local SWVA
companies. Funds ate also allocated for UVA-W petsonnel ($63K), equipment ($54I),
supplies/materials ($7K) and $112K for tuition and student stipends, for a total of $§236K flowing to
UVA-W. The stipends ($30K) will provide financial suppott to the students while they ate
completing the apprenticeship program. Matching funds of $482,292 will be provided by FOUR18
for contractual services ($442,867) related to program development, progtam management,
recruitment, licenses, etc. to be financed by Income Sharing Agreements (ISA), a unique educational
financing tool available to students pursuing education in cettain professions (generally those with
above-average income potential). In an ISA scenario the “impact investot’ entets into the Income
Sharing Agreement with the student in exchange for a limited share of the individual’s future income
above a minimum threshold. The applicants state that sustainability will accomplished through a
vatiety of funding sources, including ISAs, Oppottunity Zone investments, UVA-W tuition and
reduced-cost licenses for UVA-W to use the FOUR18 platform, so that future annual cohorts will
be added and led by UVA-W faculty.

Financial Viability Assessment: The reliance on ISAs is a new funding strategy that repottedly has
been used successfully at Purdue University, and presents a new strategy that has not yet been tested
in the Tobacco Region. The proposal would be strengthened by having an independent assessment
of the results of the IKentucky and Louisiana programs that provide the models for this project.
None the less, the project objective of standing up a new certificate-based program incorpotating
CompTIA certification as patt of the cybetsecurity training and apprenticeships are activities and



outcomes which better align with the funding priorities of the Competitive Hducation Progtam.

Staff suggests that this proposal be refetred to the Education Committee for consideration in Spring
2020.

Staff recommends this request be teferted to the Competitive Education progtam for
consideration in Spring 2020.

31



32

AGENDA

SPECIAL PROJECTS COMMITTEE

Monday, January 6, 2020
2:30 P.M.

Call-in - 646-558-8656 / Access code: 601-082-667

Homewood Suites by Hilton

700 East Main Street
Richmond, VA

Welcome and Call to Order The Honorable Daniel Marshall, Chairman
Call of the Roll Evan Feinman, Executive Director
Approval of the _6/6/19 Minutes (published on website)
MegaSite Policy Discussion Evan I'einman, Executive Director
FY20 New Project Proposals Tim Pfohl, Grant Director
Tabled Proposals Tim Pfohi, Grqnt Director
Out of Cycle Proposal Tim Pfohl, Grant Director
Other Business Tim Pfohl, Grant Director

Extension Requests

Public Comments

Adjournment



FY20 Special Projects

Summaries & Staff Recommendations

In October the Commission received 8 requests for FY2020 Special Projects funds under the
application categoties of Regional Economic Development and Access to Healthcate. Two
additional proposals tabled in the FY19 round ate also included herein. Those requests total $5.5
million, and the Committee has an available balance of $2,175,062. There are also six Other Business
items regarding extensions requested for existing active grants.

Req P ; s Requested
: 1 \
o Organization Project Title L= Staff rec
Regional Economic Development
) . Digital media content and
3602 Blue l.l{dge Dbl delivery system Sights Sounds $460,000 $0
Television, Inc. )
and Stories
3601 | Tows of Ditngsens | 2DpAeditn Trail Geatee of $150,000 $150,000
Damascus
) Sewer Extension for Summit
3597 | Franklin County View Business Patk $250,000 $250,000
3610 | Greensville County MAMaC Utility Infrastructure $861,631 $75,000
) Expansion of the Civil Rights in
3589 | Mecklenburg County Eiducation Hetliags Tral $70,000 $70,000
Southwest Virginia Vitginia Rural Information Refer to
3595 | Higher Education Technology Apprenticeship Pilot | $700,000 Competitive
Center Foundation Program Education
Southwest Virginia . " ! Resubmit to
3334 | Wotkforce SWVA Regional Certified Work | ¢)16 95 | Competitive
Ready Communities Initiative :
Development Board Education
Edwatd Via Virginia Railways to Healthways: Serving
3467 | College of Osteopathic | SWVA Health, Education and $180,000 $0
Medicine Economy
Subtotal - Regional Economic Development §2,920,581 $545,000
Access to Healthcare
A B Expanding Access to Cancer and '
3600 | University of Vitginia Healiicate Serines $427,346 $0
o Implementing the Mobile Health
3596 E‘f”jaicomm‘m“'e"‘lﬂl Tnitiatives and Resources Experts | $2,151,642 $0
WG (mHIRE) Program
Subtotal - Access to Healtheare 82,578,988 $0
Total (10 requests) $5,499,569 $545,000

33



34

Regional Economic Development

Blue Ridge Public Television, Inc.
Digital media content and delivery system Sights Sounds and Stoties (#3602)
$460,000 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: Sights, Sounds and Stories is an ongoing project
designed to tell the positive stoties of the underserved areas of southwest and southetn Virginia,
Our project gives dedicated journalists the opportunities to tell stories in a positive way that can be
shared with the masses. It uses the platform of digital media allowing these communities to come
together. We will create a new channel (on the YouTube platform) that gives a continuous program
stteam, much like a tv channel, to the VTRRC footprint. With a lead producer and 2 project
producets we can generate over 150 segments a yeat cteating an unprecedented 24-hour stream for
the region. Addition equipment must be purchased. Once the channel is in place, we ask for content
contributors from others in the region. These conttibutions will be facilitated by our lead producer
and project journalists. Future oppottunities will involve creating town hall meetings and open
forums.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: This request seeks funding for three staff, equipment
($94K), travel, $150K for "online costs" to create edited video content of stories from the Tobacco
Region on atts and cultute, agriculture, education, politics and other topics, fot posting online.
Matching funds would come latgely from the applicant ($263I), a proposed §150K ARC grant
application, as well as a $§50K request to the Newman's Own Foundation. TRRC staff has advised
the applicant in discussion priot to this submission, that the project does not align with out Strategic
Plan Logic Models, since there ate no direct measurable economic outcomes. As such, this was one
of the two lowest scoting proposals in this application cycle.

Financial Viability Assessment: For this project to publish positive stories from the Tobacco
Region, it is uncleat what economic action the video content would lead viewers to take, or how
many viewets would see this and act in some measurable economic mannet such as visiting the
region, ot as the proposal suggests, statting a business in the region. Likewise, it is unclear how any
resulting actions could that be tracked and attributed directly to this project. Sustainability beyond a
petiod of grant funding is also unclear. Staff suggests the Committee should consider the
"oppottunity cost" of using $460K in this way, and question whether this proposed project is
consistent with Commission enabling legislation to revitalize the economy.

Staff recommends no award.

Town of Damascus
Appalachian Trail Center of Damascus (#3601)
$150,000 Requested

Executive Summaty Provided by Applicant: A region-wide outdoor recreation initiative was
started in 2012 to promote community and economic development through outdoor recreation by
developing outdoor assets, uniting them undet a common brand, supporting downtown
revitalization, and cross-promoting assets and their communities. This project seeks to leverage
funds from the Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission, the Appalachian Regional Commission
POWER Initiative, Vitginia’s CDBG program, and other local sources to take the next step in the
development and enhancement of the natural assets within and surrounding the Town of Damascus.
This project will allow completion of the Appalachian Trail Center of Damascus, a facility owned by



the Town and staffed/opetated (by Agreement) by the ATC for a period of 20 yeats. This project is
the centerpiece of the Town's overall revitalization and economic restructuring plan.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: The application requests additional funding to address
larger than anticipated construction costs of the Appalachian Trail Center being developed in
Damascus. The project’s initial two bids both returned results of a minimum $150k over the
estimated consttuction budget of $575,300. With the third round of bids due in early December, this
application was submitted to request additional funding to address these cost overruns. During
Staff’s review of the proposal, through follow up conversations with the applicant, we learned that
while the December bids came in on budget, the decteased estimates were based on the decision to
cut approximately 30% of the Center’s proposed square footage. The estimated 600 sq. ft. cut from
the design wete intended to house the ATC’s training room as well as the exhibit room which would
be used to highlight other AT communities in the region. Although the impact of the ATC will be
latgest in the immediate Damascus atea, the Appalachian Trail runs through 5 TRRC localities
(Washington, Smyth, Wythe, Grayson, and Bland) and attracts a national and international audience
to the region. An estimated 20,000 visitots are expected annually, and the Center’s exhibits will
promote other surrounding AT communities to spread the impact across the region. The current
application estimates a total development cost, including site acquisition and design as well as start
up staffing and non-exhibit related equipment, of $1,360,500. Additional funding has been
committed by ARC ($49,000 — A&E, site work, construction), ARC-POWER ($530,500 - A&EF, site
work, construction, exhibits), and Tobacco Commission ($150k awarded to Friends of SWVA in
grant #3198 — construction). The Town of Damascus provided $250k for site acquisition and will
contribute $85,000 for construction of the Trail Center. While the curtently approved funding will
allow construction of the ATC to move forwatd on a reduced scale, the applicant has asked that the
current request be considered to allow the previously removed sections of the project to be re-bid to
explore the potential of completing the project in its otiginal form. The training room and exhibit
space ate consideted ctitical areas that will generate much of the associated regional impact of the
project.

Financial Viability Assessment: The premise of supporting visitor centers rests on the notion that
these facilities promote local and regional destinations, and thereby extend the length of stay and
spending by visitors. In this case, the AT Center in Damascus has committed to promoting multiple
regional destinations, is a ptiotity project of the regional Friends of Southwest Vitginia matketing
and destination development partnetship, and further solidifies Damascus - once a town dependent
on a single industrial employer that is now long gone - as a major AT stop that has earned its
reputation as "Ttrail Town" and resulted in a surprising array of Trail-oriented ptivate businesses
including lodging and outfittets. The case for regional impact and suppott for the creation of this
Center is endorsed by co-fundets such as DHCD/ARC, meshes solidly with other TRRC-supported
outdoor recreation tourism efforts in SWVA, and is strongly invested in by the Appalachian Trail
Consetvancy.

Staff recommends award of $150,000.

Franklin County
Sewer Extension for Summit View Business Park (#3597)
$250,000 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: The Summit View Business Park (SVBP) is a
premier business patk for the Vitginia Tobacco Region. It encompasses 550 acres and will one day
be home to an estimated 15-20 new businesses, $300 million in private investment, and create over
2,200 new jobs for the County and region. The park is hampered by the lack of sewer capacity to

35



36

handle new businesses moving into the patk. The park is currently served by a small sewet package
plant that has a total daily capacity of 20,000 gallons pet day (GPD), of which 10,000 is ot will soon
be taken leaving 10,000 GPD available. The proposal will extend sewer service down U.S. Route
220 to the outskirts of the town of Rocky Mount and tie into the Town's much larger sewer
treatment system. This extension will increase the daily GPD capacity to 115,000 GPD thus
allowing further development within the patk.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: This ptoject is to address obvious wastewater treatment
capacity limitations necessaty for attracting additional new companies to Franklin County’s 550-acre
Summit View Business Park, with $250,000 requested to suppozt the $845,900 estimated project
cost. The existing package treatment plant setving the SVBP has a capacity of 20,000 GPD, of
which 10,000 GPD is committed for two recently announced companies, leaving a 10,000 GPD
reserve. The County is working with a third prospect, a food and beverage company, which has
sewer requitements estimated at 20,000 GPD that exceed the available capacity of the current
system. The County - in pattnership with the Western Virginia Water Setvice Authority - plans to te
into the Town of Rocky Mount’s latget sewer treatment system with a 7,100 linear foot 8-inch sewet
force main extension, increasing sewet capacity to 115,000 gallons per day at SVBP, and longer term
plans are for an additional extension (if needed) that could increase wastewater capacity for SVBP to
400,000 GPD. WVWA provided a $3.4 million preliminary engineering estimate from 2016 for the
US 220 commetcial corridor (with the majotity of this work having now been completed) and the
remaining force main segment requested for TRRC support estimated to cost $845,900. Recognizing
that the route is along the busy US 220 cottidot, and to address cash flow revenue questions raised
by staff, WVWA confirmed that no customets outside the SVBP will be requited to connect, noting
that for system engineeting putposes the Authority does not typically allow individual property
connections to major pressutized force mains. Previous investments by TRRC in SVBP total
$1,319,649 under three grants (two from SSED and one SP); and Franklin County’s local
investments in SVBP are estimated at §35 million. This project is eligible for Special Projects
funding consideration based on the balance in the County’s allocation under the SSED program
being insufficient to cover the requested funding need. The Commission has provided a TROF
estimate for Project Kingston - which would be SVBP's third committed occupant - of a $245,000
grant and $245,000 loan incentive, based on economic outcomes projected at 56 new jobs with
average salary/wage of $50,281, and private capital investment of $30.58 million.

Financial Viability Assessment: The subsequently-provided information has affirmed the primary
focus of this project is for addressing wastewater capacity needs for new companies locating to
SVBP - a core TRRC program objective - with little obvious new cash flow that would suppott a
tecommendation for loan financing, and any additional future sewer revenues being speculative at
this time. Franklin County's own investments in SVBP are visionary, well-leveraged and thoroughly
validated by the recent ptivate investments by Stik-Pak Solutions and ValleyStar Credit Union, with
substantial potential future returns on those public investments through prospects that are both
current and can be anticipated with the additional site and infrastructure development provided by
this and previous TRRC grants in site grading, broadband and utility infrastructure.

Staff rtecommends awatd of $250,000.



Greensville County
MAMaC Utility infrastructure (#3610)
$861,631 Requested

Executive Summaty Provided by Applicant: Greensville County in partnership with
Mecklenburg County and the City of Emporia, have taken great strides in preparing MAMaC for an
MEI client. Two infrastructute projects have been designed and bid to shotten the time frame to
opetation fot a client. Both project bids, a road and sewer extension, came in over the preliminary
estimates. The County is requesting $449,840 to complete Otterdam Road, phase II. The County
also requests $336,791 to complete the sewer extension from where it connects to Otterdam road to
the site. In addition to the utility consttuction, the County is prepating to engineer a natural gas
extension that will serve MAMaC as well as several other industrial sites. The County is requesting
$75,000 for 1/2 of the engineering cost.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: This request ptimarily setves the TRRC-funded MAMaC
megasite, which is a tegional partnership with Emporia and Mecklenburg. TRRC grants to cteate
MAMaC have totaled $25.9 million. Funds requested herein would fill cost overruns for bids
received on Otterdam Road phase 2 widening ($450K) and a sewer extension ($337K). Those
projects ate ptrimatily funded by VDOT ($1.48M) and GoVitginia ($2.19M) respectively. Greensville
is also conttibuting more than $§786K to those two projects, and an active 2015 TRRC Megasite
grant (903K) is assisting the road improvement. The proposal has been revised to request an
additional $75K (matched equally by the County) to allow Columbia Gas to begin engineering of a
gas line to setve both MAMaC and the County industrial park, where a cutrent prospect requites
natural gas setvice. While Staff acknowledges the cost overtuns for the road and sewer bids received,
which could potentially be funded from the current available Megasite Program balance of $2.99M,
it is suggested that those limited funds to further advance the readiness of the nine sites funded by
the Megasite Progtam should be reserved for a Spring 2020 open competition, based on remaining
development needs at the nine Megasites. The County has indicated in this proposal that a Spring
Megasite funding cycle might result in a shifting of the local priority to natural gas line construction,
which is estimated as a $21M project. Staff does, however, suppotrt a Special Projects award at this
time of $75,000 sought in this request to support 50% of the $150K cost to begin engineering the
natural gas line. This engineeting is estimated to have a 6-8 month timeline, which would greatly
shorten the time to deliver gas setvices to MAMaC and the cutrent County industrial park prospect.
Financial Viability Assessment: MAMaC, as well as other TRRC region megasites, have been a
funding priotity for the Commission for a decade, and MAMaC in patticular has been a finalist for
at least two transformational OEM prospects. It is not known at this time if a future MAMaC
prospect would requite a multi-million dollar natural gas line, but making this small investment in
gas line engineeting is a low tisk and potentially critically important step in shortening the timeline to
deliver gas service should it eventually be needed.

Staff recommends awatd of $75,000.

Mecklenburg County
Expansion of the Civil Rights in Education Heritage Trail (#3589)
$70,000 Requested

Executive Summaty Provided by Applicant: In 2004, The Civil Rights in Education Hetitage
Trail®, (CRIEHT), a self-guided driving tout of 41 important Civil Rights in Education sites, was
developed and installed throughout Central and Southern Virginia. A few years ago, Virginia’s
Crossroads sought to expand the trail, adding 12 new sites to the existing trail. The funding

37



38

requested in this grant application, matched by Vitginia’s Crossroads, will be used to complete the
following:

1. Add 12 new CRIEHT locations to the existing 41 sites.

2. Complete the design pottion of the graphic panel insetts to reflect the newly designed map and
trail listing for continuity with the existing 41 locations (see Project Location Map).

3. Refurbish the existing 41 pedestals with some paint, polish and new patts, as required. Said patts
will include replacing some pedestal patts, or even entire pedestals.

4, Make every existing site ADA compliant.

5. Install new wayfinding signs.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: This request is to support 50% of the $140,000
estimated costs for a priotity project of the regional toutism marketing alliance, Virginia Crosstoads
(previously known as Vitginia’s Retreat), for expansion of the Civil Rights in Education Heritage
Trail. Virginia Crosstoads is recognized as a long-standing regional collaboration receiving annual
operating suppott conttibutions, and setving fourteen tobacco region counties. With this project, the
41 existing sites that are part of the CRIEHT driving tour, would be expanded with 12 new sites
bringing the total to 53 sites, the majority being in the tobacco region. A list of the new site locations
was provided. (Costs associate with a site in Petersburg will be covered from Match.) Grant and
matching funds would be used to suppott costs to finish design worlk on graphic panel insetts, costs
for new site markers and fabrication of graphic panels and wayfinding signs, new graphic panel
inserts for existing sites to tie the entite trail together, and updates to existing sites including
addressing ADA compliance issues. Content for the new pedestals has already been developed and
is ready to use in completion of the graphic panel designs and revised route maps and marketing
materials. The CRIEHT is being promoted through brochutes available at all Virginia Toutism
Welcome Centers and in county visitor centets; and on the Vitginia Crossroads website, currently
being updated to provide more emphasis on the opportunities for visitots to travel this dtiving trail
while in the region. Limited information is available for assessing the economic impact of the trail,
despite it being a keystone of the marketing efforts of this regional tourism organization.
Recognizing the limited economic impact data specifically for this driving trail, staff inquired about
consideration to contracting for a modestly-priced, economic impact study with sutvey data
collection mechanism to get a current undetstanding of visitors to the trail. This suggestion was
received favorably. A revised detailed budget was provided for the $140,000 estitated project costs,
cotrecting two etrors identified during the review process, and allocating ~ $13,500 towatd the
economic impact study.

Financial Viability Assessment: With the CRIEHT trail including the Robert Russa Moton
Museum, a national landmark and patt of the U.S. Civil Rights Trail, this project meets the
Commission’s criteria for supporting nationally-tecognized toutism destination. The CRIEHT
teceives funding support from fourteen tobacco region localities meeting the Special Projects
program criteria for regional patticipation and governance. The major aspect of this long-standing
regional tourism partnership that is lacking — petiodic economic impact assessment — will be
addressed by the impact study that is a condition of this grant.

Staff recommends award of $70,000 including suppott for the economic impact study to be
completed as a condition of this grant.



Southwest Virginia Higher Education Center Foundation
Virginia Rural Information Technology Apprenticeship Pilot Program (#3595)
$700,000 Requested

Executive Summaty Provided by Applicant: In 2019, the General Assembly of Vitginia
established the Virginia Rural Information Technology Apprenticeship Grant Program for the
purpose of awatding grants on a competitive basis to small, rural information technology businesses
to establish apprenticeship programs. The Southwest Virginia Higher Education Foundation is
secking an awatd to fund the proof of concept for the program to be overseen by the Southwest
Virginia Higher Education Centet in collaboration with the Chief Workforce Development Officer
of the Commonwealth of Vitginia as stated in the Code of Vitginia. The funds will support the first
round of competitive apptenticeships for the identified tobacco region localities of Bland,
Buchanan, Catroll, Dickenson, Grayson, Lee, Russell, Scott, Smyth, Tazewell, Washington, Wise and
Wythe and the Cities of Bristol, Danville, Galax, Martinsville, and Notton. Guidelines and policies
for the program will follow the ctiteria set in place by the Center and approved by the Chief
Wotkforce Development Officer.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: The application requests funding to initiate a pilot for
paying entry level salaties for the first cohort of 12 I'T apprentices, to be employed and mentored by
small rural IT businesses and suppotted for an 18 month period. The General Assembly and
Governor approved the Rural IT Apptenticeship Grant Fund in the 2019 session under Code of
Vitginia 23.1-3129.1. However, no state funding was approved in 2019 to initiate the ptrogtam,
which pet Code is to be adminstered by SWHEC and available on a competitive basis to IT
employers in Southwest (except Floyd), the Southside cities of Danville and Mattinsville and four
Westetn Virginia counties outside the Commission footptint. Commission funds would be used in a
cost-share approach as an initial pilot (in lieu of state funding) to reimburse participating employers
for 70% of the proposed $58,333 annual salary and benefits for the apprentices. Matching funds will
be provided by the participating employers who will contribute $300k for the apprentice salaries and
benefits and $270k representing the salary and benefits for the mentoring employees. The
patticipating mentot organizations will also contribute computers and other equipment valued at
$30k. The program requites that the apprentice maintain full time employment for an additional 18
months after the apptrenticeship petiod had ended. The HEC will contribute $70k representing a
pottion of the salary and benefits for the Grant Program Ditectot ($60k) and Executive Director
($5k) for the time spent working on the project as well as rent and administrative expenses (35k).
This conttibution should be reclassified as in-kind match since these are well established positions at
the HEC. Additionally, $30k will be provided by the applicant for apprentice salary and benefits.
The details of this cost-sharing arrangement, including commitments from both the employer and
apprentice beyond the 36 month period, were not provided in the application which states that final
policies and procedures ate being developed with assistance from the Commonwealth’s Chief
Wortlkforce Development Officet. These details should be provided prior to funding approval.
Similarly, priot to any Commission funding being considered, reconsideration of state approptiation
funding should be allowed to play out in the 2020 General Assembly budget deliberations. The
proposed 70% reimbutsement seems extremely generous compared to other TRRC supported cost
share programs which are often at 33% reimbursement. Staff suggests that a 50/50 cost share may
be more approptiate, but that the request either be tabled until after the 2020 session, and/or
alternatively referred to the Education Committee for consideration in May during the FY20
Competitive Education cycle.

Financial Viability Assessment: This request seeks a high level of funding per apprentice ($58K
each) for just 12 positions, and could be viewed by the General Assembly as a message that the
Commission is willing to be the primaty funder of the program in future years, (including

39



40

apprentices in non-TRRC counties), which would be a costly and ultimately unsustainable drain on
future Commission budgets.

Staff recommends the project be treferted to Competitive Education, pending the outcome
of the state biennium budget adopted in the 2020 session.

Southwest Virginia Workforce Development Boatrd
Southwest Vitginia Regional Certified Work Ready Communities Initiative
(#3334)

$377;025 Requested — Reduced to $114,620

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: The 17 jutisdictions in Workforce Development
Areas T and I1, in pattnership with local governments, regional economic development agencies,
school divisions, higher education, and employets, will become ACT Certified Work Ready
Communities (CWRC) fot putposes of economic development and for quantifying and verifying
work readiness skills that employers requite for job placement and advancement. This includes using
the National Career Readiness Certificate (NCRC) as a competency-based, industry-recognized,
third-party validated, pottable and stackable cettification that validates work readiness skills in:
applied mathematics, locating information, and reading for information. It will be administered to
high school seniors in addition to Wotkforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) patticipants,
college students and other job seekers, and incumbent workers. Economic developers will use it as
a recruitment tool per Site Selection Magazine. Employers will use job profiling for high-need
positions as a means to match job-specific requirements to requisite skill attainment levels.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: FY2020 Update (December 2019): This request to
promote the National Cateer Readiness Cettificate (NCRC) across 21 region localities was submitted
to the Special Projects Committee in FY18 but was tabled each of the past two years. This effort will
result in their recognition as ACT Cettified Wotk Ready Communities (CWRC). It is modeled on a
similat initiative in Southern VA that was funded by the TRRC Education Committee, and to date
has resulted in national certification of several SoVa localities as Work Ready Communities. It was
originally submitted to covet two wotkforce development boatd regions (Areas One and Two,
serving 17 TRRC tegion localities in SWVA). The updated request, received in December 2019,
seeks funding to support only the Atea 2 setvice atea (Mount Rogers and New River) serving nine
TRRC localities and four non-TRRC localities (NRMRWDB also seeks to be the grantee/ fiscal
agent instead of the otiginal applicant organization for Area One). The requested amount has been
accordingly reduced to $114,620. Those funds would be used for a small percentage (5-10%) of time
for four current staff membets ($31K requested) and for $83IK of various projects costs including
WorkKeys NCRC test fees for 1,500+ Tobacco Region residents ($541<), as well as softwate license
fees for training and job profiling, travel, outreach, supplies and other related expenses. While some
progtess has been made over the past two yeats to promote NCRC testing across the region, there
temains a substantial need for assistance to see the effort through to a successful completion. The
Area 2 (New River/Mount Rogets) Workforce Development Board will contribute §117,738 in
matching funds however a latge portion of this ($61,742) is for expenses associated with testing
expenses for the 4 localities in their setvice area that are not in the TRRC region. Staff does not feel
that these expenses ate apptoptiate match for this project. The remainder of the match is proposed
for existing salaries, use of computets, rent, etc. Approximately $24,000 of match is allocated for
testing fees and proctoting. Staff feels that this project would be better suited to the Competitive
FEducation Program where similar projects, such as the one implemented in Southetn VA were
funded. A referral to the Education Committee would provide the additional benefit of allowing



additional time for Staff to work with the applicant to identify more suitable match and to continue
to refine the budget.

Financial Viability Assessment: This regional project, while reduced to one workforce region, has
been successfully initiated by the WDBs and localities without the benefit of TRRC funding, which
is a testament to the regional collaboration and desite to have communities certified as Work Ready.
The NCRC is a known economic development rectuitment tool and this regional effort will ensure
that SWVA does not fall behind levels achieved in other parts of the state, including Southern VA.
If the intended outcomes of more than 1,500 NCRC-certified residents is achieved, this could
potentially be one of the most cost-effective investments the Commission could make. Assistance
from the Commission could ramp up efforts and address funding shortfalls that have been identified
in the initial project period, however the flaws mentioned above regarding matching funds is a
significant weakness of the proposal in its current state, and should be addressed in a new follow-up
request in the name of the NRMRWDB to the Commission's Competitive Education program in
Spring 2020. Having originally been submitted by the Area One WDB two yeats ago, and revised
multiple times since, a new current proposal to Education (as opposed to referting this one) would
be much cleanet to comprehend and consider for assistance.

Staff recommends this ptoject be resubmitted as a new proposal — with revised applicant,
budget and outcomes - in the Spring 2020 Competitive Education round.

Edward Via Virginia College of Osteopathic Medicine

Railways to Healthways; Serving Southwest Vitginia's Health, Education and
Economy (#3467)

$180,000 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: “Railways to Healthways” legitimizes the common
agenda of a grass roots effort initiated in May of 2016. Community and government leadets in the
coal fields of Virginia approached tegional educatots to advance enrollment of students in local
medical and health professional schools. The challenge was eagetly accepted. The existing
partnership between Tazewell County Public School (T'CPS) system and Southwest Vitginia
Community College (SWCC) and a new Master of Arts in Biomedical Sciences (MABS) degtee
program at Bluefield College will be offered on the VCOM-Vitginia campus. Out initiative will
advance the following goals: 1) strengthen the SWCC cateer coaching programs at public schools
(Buchanan, Tazewell, Russell) to focus on health professions, 2) enhance student admission and
graduation rates at local 4-yeat colleges 3) advance health business pattnerships for offer youth
oppottunities and 4) most importantly, inspire area youth to see health professions as a reality;
academically, financially and culturally.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: December 2019 update: This project was tabled in
September 2018. TRRC Staff followed up with the applicant in anticipation of this meeting and
spoke at length about the concerns with the project and possible solutions. Duting those discussions
it became clear that the project as presented in 2018 continues to be the preferred ditection. In a
nearly identical budget to the original 2018 submission, TRRC funding of $60,000 pet year fot 3
years will be used to suppott a VCOM faculty member ($26,900) to setve as the Program Ditector
tasked with coordinating efforts with pattner schools as well as collecting and reporting data to
measure program effectiveness. The budget continues to allocate $24,600 to be used over three years
to supplement curtent cateet coach positions at SwVCC and Bluefield College and expand the time
they are able to spend with students. Currently career coaches do not necessatily focus on patticular
career paths and this funding would be used to support positions dedicated to healthcare

41



42

e e e R e A el > & VN

professions. These pattnerships would allow students to be exposed to several healthcare career
pathways that tequite vatying levels of educational attainment. The remaining funds are budgeted
for the development of program materials (§8,000) and the Director’s travel ($500). The majotity of
matching funds continue to be allocations of time from several VCOM-based positions (petcentages
for faculty/staff contributions to the project).

Financial Viability Assessment: While the objectives of the project and the project leader's vision
are commendable, this project results in neither healthcare setvices to residents nor academic
credentials for students, so alignment with TRRC program mettrics are lacking. Directing limited
TRRC funds to career coaching is a long-term investment that lacks sustainability, with indirect
outcomes that are difficult to teliably quantify. While there is little doubt that the demand for both
healthcare services - and professionals to provide those setvices - will continue to rise far above the
region’s supply for each, a proposal such as the one presented here simply does not align with the
Commission’s stated petformance measutes outlined in the Strategic Plan, and would take a decade
ot more to see results from students completing healthcare education and returning to work in the
region. Staff concedes there is value in raising awareness among I<-12 students about cateet
oppottunities such as healthcare, and commends the project partners for working towatrd a
2+2+graduate post-secondaty education pipeline, but remains focused on targeting the
Commission's limited resoutces to projects that directly deliver healthcare setvice to residents
(through the Special Projects Program), and supporting educational projects that directly award
healthcare wotkforce credentials to students (thtough the Education Program).

Staff recommends no award.

T TAccews o Healllicie: 1 e e

University of Virginia
Expanding Access to Cancer and Healthcare Services (#3600)
$427,346 Requested

Executive Summatry Provided by Applicant: Virginia’s rural tobacco region continues to have
high rates of colorectal and breast cancers, as well as poor access to other healthcate services.
Residents in this region commonly face financial battiers, lack of insurance or transportation, and
shortage of practicing providets as bartiers to receiving needed care. To address this need, we
propose to expand out cancet scteening programs that includes mobile breast cancet scteening and
a comprehensive colorectal cancet program, and will implement two outreach programs that will
promote cancer screening, Medicaid enrollment, and suppott for a health clinic to provide free
medical services. These programs will help increase access to cancer prevention through screening,
as well as access to needed procedures for those who otherwise may be forced to go without. Our
screening programs have alteady proven to be life-saving services, and the medical setvices offered
through outreach have alteady successfully provided needed setvices to thousands of patients.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: Since 2008 the Commission has provided approximately
$4.9M to suppott the expansion of UVA healthcare services including cancer screening and
prevention and telehealth setvices to the TRRC region. Of this amount there are cutrently 2 active
grants with a total balance of approximately $765K. The current request seeks funding to continue
to provide screenings for breast and colorectal cancer, both of which have been suppotted by
previous Commission grants. In 2018 an award of $266,562 was made to suppott these activities for
one yeat. There has been no activity on this grant and the current proposal appeats to tequest
suppott in yeats 2 and 3, which were requested but not approved in the 2018 award. TRRC funds



are requested for general program suppott ($102,049), colorectal screenings (8186,658), and mobile
mammography ($32,639). The application requests $6,000 for printing and marketing costs
associated with VHCF screening and Medicaid entollment referrals. Finally $100,000 is requested to
support the Health Wagon’s Move Mountains Medical Mission Clinic (M7) which will replace the
RAM clinic that operated in the region for many years providing dental, vision, and general medical
treatment. Commission funds are requested for volunteer compensation, event staff, dental stipends,
etc. No information was provided on how this event would be sustained beyond the initial three
yeat period covered by this application. The application presents impressive outcome estimates for
these activities. The mobile mammography van will setve 350 women (175 per yeat). Colorectal
screenings (FIT test) will be provided for 1,500 tobacco region residents with 1,000 of these
returned and processed resulting in 60 follow up colonoscopies. The M7 clinic will serve an
estimated 3,600 patients over three years. UVA will contribute matching funds of $427,451 primarily
for program administtation, mobile mammography, and the colorectal cancer expenses. No match
was shown for the Medicaid entollment or M7 activities. As in ptevious applications UVA has
presented percentages of multiple existing positions, neatly all Charlottesville-based, in ordet to meet
the match requitement. Of the $427,451 match shown for the current application, over half
($221,787) is from UV A-based leadership and program administration expenses telated to
management of the project. Many of these same positions have appeated in numetous UVA
applications as far back as 2008.

Financial Viability Assessment: Despite the unquestioned commitment to providing much
needed healthcare services to the TRRC region (in patticulat to the SW), and a clearly-detailed
budget, activities and outcomes, there does not appear to have been an effort by UVA to assume
any of the financial needs associated with providing these services which have received Commission
suppott for over a decade. With these factors in mind, the majority of the match presented in this
application would be better classified as “in-kind” and would exceed the limit for non-cash match.
Much of this proposal would utilize TRRC funds in years two and three, as curtent active grants
cover much of the year one activities. Given the sizable balances on the two cuttent grants ($765K)
there does not appear to be great urgency to fund this plan for the next year, and year one activities
could be accomodated with budget revisions to those cutrent grants. Per Committee discussion at
recent meetings, Staff has been directed to begin shifting the focus of Special Projects - Healthcare
funding away from supotting the two cancer centers at UVA and VCU after a decade of suppott
that assisted the centers due to state budget consttaints at the start of the 2008 recession.

Staff recommends no award.

Virginia Commonwealth University

Implementing the Mobile Health Initiatives and Resources Experts (mHIRE)
Program (#3596)

$2,151,642 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: Using a mobile health program called mHealth
Initiatives and Resource Expetts (nHIRE), we will provide health access opportunities to rural
communities of the VA Tobacco Region. The putpose of mHIRE is to decrease the burden of
cancer in Virginia by increasing access to health care. mHIRE will employ a mobile health unit to
provide on-site access to cancet setvices in Danville, Farmville, and Brunswick County. We plan to
use telemedicine to deliver health care setvices to tural residents in order to reduce or minimize
challenges patients encounter (e.g., transportation). mHIRE will provide the following cancet-related
setvices: 1) CRC screening; 2) oral cancer screening; 3) prostate cancer education and navigation to
screening for high risk men; 4) human papillomavirus (HPV) vaccinations; 5) telemedicine to deliver

43



44

genetic counseling risk assessments; 6) telemedicine to deliver palliative care; 7) telemedicine to
deliver tobacco cessation; and 8) patient navigation to approptiate cancer-related care and setvices.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: Massey Cancet Centet at VCU has received nine TRRC
grants for $8.88M since 2008. This current request seeks 99% of available Special Projects balance
that was published in the Program Guidelines. This specifically seeks $1.22M for personnel
including $272K for Richmond-based faculty and staff, §253K for contractual travel, conferences
and 2 med professionals, $151K fot supplies/materials, $256K for continuous rent and office costs
for the two Tobacco Region Cancer Research and Resoutce Centers located in Danville and
Lawrenceville, and $267K for putchase of a mobile van. Funding by year breaks out to $890K in
year one, and $630K in each of years two and three. All required matching funds are listed but not
specified in any detail that would allow TRRC staff to know the soutce or uses (presumably, as in
past grants, these ate all Richmond-based costs). The proposal lists fout initiatives, each requesting
$538K, for cancer screening/sesvices, telehealth delivery, navigation to cancer care/services and
tobacco cessation services. Cancet screening would be focused on colorectal, oral, prostate and
HPV. Outcomes ate listed as a total of 635 residents setved, ptimarily through access to cancet
screening and services (550) and patient navigation to cancer care/services (50). This current
proposal states that in 2018, the CRRCs provided cancer-related services and information to 3,763
residents through a vatiety of events, and assisted 65 residents with navigation to cancet cate
services. Financial Viability Assessment: As stated in the FY19 Staff Repott, after a decade of
outteach and education through the two Centets, there is no definitive data provided to indicate that
cancer detection and treatment rates have improved in the region. In grants over the past five years,
the Commission has only suppotted staffing and operating expenses for the two Tobacco Region
CRRCs for a one-year continuation petiod (an average of $533I/year), with the admonition that
matching funds in future requests should be secured to fund half of the Centers. To date, and as
reflected in this proposal, Massey has resisted funding any portion of TRRC region costs, relying
100% on TRRC supportt to staff and operate those Centets. In this same timeframe, Massey's FY18
"Philanthropic Review" annual donot teport cites $10.5M of philanthropic giving, $12.5M of state
approptiations and $33.4M of research grant funding. MCC now seeks to continue Commission
support of the Centets ovet an additional three-year petiod, while also seeking additional Richmond-
based expenses, which have been relegated to the matching fund categories in the most recent
grants. Given the Committee's discussion and direction at its two most recent meetings regarding
phasing out support of the two Vitginia cancer centers (which was initiated as a response to the
2008 recesion) and in light of the cutrent budget sutplus, as well as Massey's failure to secure
adequate matching funds to sustain the Centers and reduce the need for Commission suppott, Staff
feels it would be contrary to the Committee's ditection to recommend continuation of funding for
even one additional year.

Staff recommends no award.

OTHER BUSINESS

Danville-PittsylvaniaRegional Industrial Facilities Authority
Berry Hill Mega Park (#2264)
Request for Extension to January 11, 2022

Staff Overview & Comments: This $2.7 million grant from the Megasite program was approved
in January 2011, to suppott design and engineering and ROW acquisition for utilities and road
infrastructure including new electrical transmission lines and substations, natute gas, and a new



connector road from US 58. The entite Megasite project development was delayed for several years
as the localities and their engineers worked through permitting issues. In September 2019, the
Commission approved a fourth extension on the grant providing a 9" year extension to January
2020. This approval also provided for a revised project budget to support $2 million for engineeting
and environmental studies (NEPA) and right-of-way acquisition for the US 311 Connector Road;
and $1.7 million toward engineering, environmental studies and ROW for the planned 138K AEP
electric transmission line with breaker/substation. The RIFA received notification in June 2019, that
the Commonwealth Transportation Board approved $33 million in funding through the Hwy. 58
Cottidor Development Fund for the road design and construction. The RIFA also reports that AEP
has selected the preferted route for the electric utility infrastructure and is negotiating ROW
acquisition with property ownets; with initial engineering and design work completed. The RIFA is
requesting an additional two year extension to January 11, 2022, or order to complete the final
elements of the agreed upon scope and deliverables for infrastructure serving Berry Hill.

Staff reéommends approval of an extension to January 11, 2022.

Liberty University
Center for Medical and Health Sciences Phase II (#2590)
Request for Six Month Extension to July 8, 2020

Staff Overview & Comments: This $8.5 million grant was approved in September 2012 to
support 50% of equipping costs for Liberty’s new medical school. Recognizing the substantial time
involved in startup of a new medical school, in January 2019, the Commission approved an
extension through January 8, 2020, to suppott identified equipping costs for the remaining $2.5
million in grant funds. Following this approval, grants staff asserted the Commission interests in
TRRC funds being used for the Simulation and Skills Lab and Anatomy Lab equipment, with
Liberty’s matching funds to be used for Research Lab and Furnishing expenses. There remains a
balance of $704,015.33 on the TRRC project account, and Liberty has identified $533,000 of eligible
expenditutes from July to mid-December for equipment purchases already received by the
University, to be submitted for reimbutsement. In early December, Libetty reported to staff that
equipment deliveties for contracts entered into in February 2019, with Von Hagens Plastination, for
plastination models budgeted to TRRC funds for the Anatomy Lab would be delayed. The
plastination models are made to order from actual human body patts, requiting 12 months from
order to completion. Based on the Februaty 2019 order date, and recognizing that they ate being
shipped from Germany, these items are not expected to arrive at LUCOM for acceptance and final
payment until ~ April 2020. All other equipment purchases supported by TRRC grant funds are on
schedule to be completed by the cutrent end date of January 8, 2020. From Liberty’s matching
funds, the $1.7 million 3D printer for the Reseatch Lab is under contract with a Sweden-based
manufacturing company and is to be delivered in spring 2020. This purchase will complete Libesty’s
requited match obligations under the grant. Liberty is requesting a six month extension to July 8,
2020, to allow sufficient time for these final equipment ordets to be fulfilled and paid.

Staff recommends approval of a six month extension of July 8, 2020.

45



46

Greensville County
Mid Atlantic Advanced Manufacturing Center (#3010)
Request for 6™ year Extension to May 21, 2021

Staff Overview & Comments: This $1,480,320 grant was approved in May 2015 to support
acquisition of electric utility ROW and construction costs for Phase 2 Otterdam Road Extension.
The county initially requested a budget revision for a portion of the grant to be used for Phase 1
Otterdam Road cost overtuns, and later a revision to reallocate $160,000 for an increase to the
engineering/project management cost. There remains a balance of §841,949.72 on the TRRC project
account to suppott the Phase 2 road construction. In June 2019, the Commission approved a fifth
year extension to May 21, 2020, at which time engineering was reported to be 99% complete and the
project was to be bid in the following months. In September, staff received a sixth extension trequest
to extend the grant for a sixth year to May 21, 2021. The delays were identified as being related to
problems obtaining right-of-ways on lands that were within restrictions of a consetvation easement.
The project was bid again and the County plans to initiate the construction contract in late
December, with construction expected to take nine months. The County is requesting a full
additional year extension to allow for any further unanticipated delays related to the weather.

Staff recommends approval of a 6" yeat extension to May 21, 2021,

Danville-Pittsylvania Regional Industrial Facility Authority
Water System Improvements Phase II (Vitginia System) (#3011)
Request for 7t year Extension to May 21, 2022

Staff Overview & Comments: This $2,241,567 grant was approved in May 2015 to support Phase
IT watetline construction and related costs to bring watet from the North Carolina line into the
Berry Hill Megasite. This included construction of 10,465 linear feet of 20” waterline and
appurtenances extended along VA SR 863. The Commission approved a 5™ year extension in
January 2019, at which time the RIFA tepotted that design, permitting, and bidding had been
completed with construction activities scheduled to start in early 2019. The current project end date
is March 1, 2020, with the full balance remaining on the TRRC project account. The RIFA reports
that the contractor has been installing the new waterline since July 2019, having accrued $715,122 of
expenses eligible for TRRC reimbursement. The waterline construction was halted with a decision
by the RIFA to relocate the watetline segment within the park. This change was determined to be
necessary due to facility layout and infrastructure location needs of several active prospects.
Dewberry & Davis is in the ptocess of redesigning the waterline, and will then putsue requited
permitting approvals. Construction of the remaining waterline extension is expected to be complete
within two yeats. The RIFA is requesting approval of a 7" year extension to May 21, 2022.

Staff recommends approval of a 7" year extension to May 21, 2022.

Mid-Atlantic Broadband Communities Corporation
Dynamic Spectrum Wireless Broadband Access for Southern VA: Phase 1 (#3088)
Request for 5th Year Extension to September 23, 2020

Staff Overview & Comments: This $300,000 grant was approved in September 2015, to support
construction of six towers and related capital costs for the TV White Space initiative also supported
by Mictosoft and in partnership with the equipment provider Adaptrum. One of the tower locations



serving the Virgilina community in Halifax County had to be relocated due to bedrock issues at the
original location. Tower construction at the new location has been delayed and MBC is again
requesting additional time for this work to be completed. MBC reported that the expetimental
network has produced mixed tesults for usets served by a total of thirteen (13) tower sites, and has
worked to troubleshoot petformance issues related to the base stations and customer premise
equipment. Adapttum took over operation of the network in July 2018 and will continue to opetate
the network through June 2020. While enrollment in the TVWS project were curtailed in 2018, the
tower site in Vitgilina is still identified as a priority by MBC for deployment of wireless broadband
services in this unserved area of Halifax County. There remains a balance of $86,597.57 on the
TRRC project account, of which $25,000 is estimated to be drawn down for this last tower.
Construction of the tower is expected to be completed in early 2020, and MBC is requesting a full
5™ year extension to accommodate any unanticipated weather related delays.

Staff recommends approval of a 5" year extension to September 23, 2020.

A L. Philpott Manufacturing Extension Pattnership
TRRC Trade Adjustment Assistance Program (TAAP) (#3097)
Request for 5 year extension

Staff Overview & Comments: This grant, which was approved for §300,000 in September 2015
(current balance of $227,439) seeks a fifth year extension, through September 30, 2020 to allow
completion of the work that is being petrformed with TRRC region based manufacturers. This
ptroject reached its expiration date on September 23, 2019 but was granted a grace petiod by the
Executive Directory in order to continue work on the project until a formal extension could be
presented to this committee for approval. Since that time one of the outstanding contracts has been
completed however the Grant Report states that one additional client remains in the pipeline. It is
not known if additional clients will be recruited during the fifth year of the grant. This grant has

opetated on a cost share basis to cover one half of the company’s cost to patticipate in the program.

The remainder of the cost is paid utilizing federal funding through the Trade Adjustment Act that is
managed by the Mid-Atlantic Trade Adjustment Assistance Cotporation (MATAAC). Through this
program, Genedge worked to provide support to companies address operations that have resulted
from foteign trade inequities.

Staff recommends an extension through September 20, 2020.

47



48

AGENDA

TROF COMMITTEE

Tuesday, January 7, 2020
9:30 A.M.

Call-in - 646-558-8656 / Access code: 601-082-667

Homewood Suites by Hilton

700 East Main Street
Richmond, VA

Welcome and Call to Order
Call of the Roll
Approval of the 10/9/19 Minutes
TROF Formula Discussion
Project Red Update
Other Business

v’ Project Extension

v' Estimate Appeal

Public Comments

Adjournment

The Honorable Terry Kilgore, Chair
Evan Feinman, Executive Director
(published on website)

Evan Feinman, Executive Director
Evan Feinman, Executive Director

Andrew Sorrell, Deputy Director



City of Danville

Office of Economic Development

December 16, 2019

Mr. Andy Sorrell
Virginia Tobacgo Region Revitalization Commission
Via electronic mail

Dear Andy:

The purpose of this letter is to request the placement of an agenda item on the TROF
Executive Committee meeting on January 7% in Richmond. eBio Nutritional Sciences
LLC Is moving from its research and development status into a full-scale commercial
operation in Gane Creek Centre, an industrial park owned by the Danville-Pittsylvania
County Regional Industrial Facilities Authority. This business is one that has been
nurtured effective with two Research and Davelopment grants from the VTRRC, and we
are extremely grateful for the support that the Commission has provided in developing
the technology. An R&D Grant(s) that enables the business entity to commit to a major
commercial manufacturing facility with an anticipated annual sales volume forecasted
conservatively to be in excess of $26 milllon meets our definition of success.

The project, as we are trying to commercialize it, needs approximately $750,000 to
ensure a successful startup and establishment of positive cash flow operations. The
business will employ an anticipated 61 persons, and the weighted average annual wage
will be slightly in excess of $83,000. We expect eBNS to make taxable capital
investments totaling approximately $4.5 million. For the Danville/Pittsylvania County
region, the average annual wage of $83,000 will be a significant contributor to our
strategy of building the percentage of middle-class income households in our
jurisdictions. Furthermore, this business will expand the locality’s strategy of becoming
a major play in advanced technology to manufacture nutraceuticals and fortified food
products,

eBio Nutritional Sciences Incorporates technology that has the potential to be used
internationally across a broad spectrum of food and pharmaceutical manufacturing
operations. The opportunity for both the Commisslon and the local jurisdictions to be
recognized widely for a novel manufacturing method to enhance the efficacy of
flavorants, pharmaceuticals and chronic treatment therapeutics is one that we think
should be supported as fully as possible by both the localities and the Commonwealth.

TROF G smadte
Poppesl,



December 16, 2019
Mr. Andy Sorrell

Please notify us as soon as possible the response to this request for a meeting,

Thank you and my very best wishes for a merry Christmas and a successful healthy,
and happy 2020,

Yours truly,

il

Telly D. Tucker, CEcD
Director




6102 '0Z Jaquiadag

000°SZL0LS 0s 000°sZL°0LS 052'c8c LS 950'2 sz syo0(oud Jo # 9L0Z Ad
005'£9L'S 0052668 000'0LL'ES 002'38Z°EVLS SLL oz syo0foid Jo # 210Z Ad
005'Z82°v$ 005°Zr9s ooo‘ora‘es 162'600'92LS Sg0°L :74 spaloudjo ¢ 8L0Z Ad
000'sS1'2$ 000°599°Z$ 000°06V'V$ 6625165128 veE'L [ir4 syoefoid jo # 610Z Ad
‘ 0 0 “ou|
000'51YS 0% 000'SHvS 000'000'9Z% szl ‘aBesadong Se_zom opishadg |  S1OSAMEANS jo preog finod thAws BLOZ/LMLO bSve
: 2 i E] vdIAS] Aoy sanied
000's6$ o 000'668 000'000'6% g€ sBe1adons Uoqinog apiskads | [eusnpu JeU0i6ax UOIBULISEAN-UIALLS 8L0Z/LL120 Z5vE
000'62LS 0% 000's2L$ 000'005% oL onenby val Aunod xejiieH BLOZ/SZILO ]
D00'SESS 0% 000'5E8% 000'055'EvS ziT DU "SSelS) $59id va) fwnod AiuaH 8L02/52/L0 o5hE
000°'0Y1LS 000'0£$ 000°0L5 »00'81L23 9z oU UBIdEYA 0 A9 ‘alliueq 8L0Z/60/0L oLvE
‘ : ‘ . Auoyiny
000'0¥L$ 000°0LE$ ooo'0se$ 000'055'2$ 00z SaWoH [eUjpse) WsldoEASG ELSNPU] AUNOD SHOKEYD 8L02/60/01 6LE
000'082$ 000'0v1S 000°0pLS 000'00¢'0L$ SL Kiessjwwo) Aaseg aidws Auno uipjuesd © 8LOZ/E0/0L 18ve
| ; : T Auoyiny Luwes
000'6¥6S 000'0£98 000'54ES 000'000'8$ 6t DT uoa)ses mopeH [isnpu) [euciBay ELEAASHI-SIAUE] 8LOZ/SLIOL Zeve
000'0LLS 03 000'0LLE 000'059% 05 MOBRY YEA Auno) piemp3 aould 8LOZ/SLIOL £8YE
— . . b ey Auowny Aloed
000'0v2'LS 0000293 000'029% 00000028 s9 U] 'selgsnpul 498 |eLyshpuj [eUaIEY BIUBAKSTIE-a]IAUBQ 810Z/SLI0} YevrE
‘ ! tiycin 0771 Ushespgey
000'002% 03 000'002$ 000'0007$ €6 PUE U AILNGT LIALIS siosinsadng jo preog Aunod WAws 8LOZ/LOM L SBYE
000'099% 000'0EES 000'0EES GEE'L61'LES sb yoedouid @553 Jo A0 ‘alaueg 8LOZRLEL L05¢e
0000248 000'09% 000'08% 000'008°4S -4 auy 'splepiyoN funod uipuesd BLOZ/ZLITL 205E
D00'SELS o0 000's6L$ 000'062'0LS A "au| ‘Buibexoed Ndl alI0uds siosinadng jo preog Aunod Yws 6LOZRLIZ0 906€
0000828 000'0FLS ooo'orLs 000'006'23 L4 271 deskjod uppe=opN a3 6L02Z/90/90 Lose
000'0£$ 000'SLS 000'GLS 000'0£2$ g _ (psounouve jou) feguapyuod VA "Aunod awyia jo val uier 6L0Z/0EM0 v5e
000°001$ 000'05% 000'05$ 000'056$ SE o ‘sufiiseq abprd enig Aunog |loved 6LOZIOEHD SpSe
000'0v$ 000'028 000'02$ 000'005'ES oL ‘ouf 900N 0 A1 xelen 6L0Z/0E0 orse
000'6tS 0s 000'sY$ 000°006'1$ 8 JT7 28peiE [BUNSNPL] [RUCIEaY BIUBAMSRIG-OIALEG 6LOZIZIS0 BYSE
000'0953% 000'022$ 000'0¥ES 000'0rZ 0vS o] "ouj asnoyar Jo A1) ‘alaueq 6L0ZITeIS0 055€
000'sLY°SS 000'0EL'LS 000°s86'c$ 6LT'6LL'651S 129'L 9 syafold jo # (a3ep 03) 020Z AL
. . . - Ruoyiny Ayoed
000'0VSS 000'0.2$ 000'0£28 000'stP'es 14 (paounouue jou) [equapyuos [BIRSPUI [RuciBaY BIRAKSId-lIAUEG 6102/90/80 965€
000'061'2$ 000's60'1$ 000'560'LS 612'858'0L8 00E “ouf dneu9 Yod jo A ‘alinueq BLOZ/ZLIE0 £85¢
000'0LL'L8 0% 000'0L4'LS 000'055°013 6Ly (psounouue jou) [epuapyLoD Aunog Banguappay BLOTISZ/LL S85E
000'66L'LS 0s 000's64'LS 000'0v8°LS$ £0L OT7uesIQ ueBion Runo) eueaisyid 5LOZ/SZI0L 809¢E
D00'0ELS 000's9$ 000'059'1ES (43 (peounouue jou) [EquspyLed Runod puepaguind 6LOZ/SE/LL 609¢
D00'061$ D00'9E8' LS 6 OT1 ‘susatg isnr

9]ep 0] 0¢0C Ad - 910C Ad SPlemy 4041

51



ADMINISTRATIVE



Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission

Financial Summary
As of October 31, 2019

TICR Fund Balance $ 205,218,823
Restricted Endowment Balance $ 75,976,441
Unrestricted Endowment Balance $ 122,819,816
Restricted Endowment Accum Interest $ 3,155,455
Unrestricted Endowment Accum Interest 3 4,840,326
Total Cash & Investments $ 412,010,860
Cash Disbursements - this month $ 1,140,029
Cash Disbursements - FYTD $ 8,303,494
Unobligated
Fund Balances
Special Projects 3 2,175,062
Education $ 11,393,080
TROF (Deal Closing) $ 1,783,376
Southside Economic Development $ 23,202,911
Southwest Economic Development $ 805,541
Agribusiness $ 2,597,796
R&D/Broadband $ 2,477,735
Megapark $ 2,990,747
Megasite Prospect Incentive Fund $ 10,500,000
VRA Loan Program set-aside $ 339,388
Administration $ 1,647,398
TICRC General Account $ 26,925,641
'FY2020 Budget Balance $ 86,838,676

11/25/2019

53



Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Cash Basis)
As of October 31, 2019

YTD Actual
as % of Variance Favorable
FY19 Budget YTD Actual Budget (Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Other Revenue (all cost codes) $ - $ 811,547.64 811,547.84
Total Revenues $ - $ 811,547.64 $ 811,547.64
EXPENDITURES
Administration
Salaries, Fringe Benefits, Per Diems $ 1,538,430 $ _559,426J20 36.4% $ 979,003.80
Contractual Services 318,950 - 49,228.34 15.4% 269,721.66
Supplies and Materials 6,000 - 1,278.51 21.3% 4,721.49
Transfer Payments 244270 - 0.0% 244,270.00
Rent, Insurance, Agency Svc Charges 166,100 39,020.95 23.5% 127,079.05
Furniture and Equipment 5,500 . .-4,434.16 80.6% 1,065.84
Subtotal - Administration $ 2,279,250 $ 653,388.16 28.7% $1,625,861.84
Community Revitalization 17,500,000 7,650,105.41
Total Expenditures $ 19,779,250 $ 8,303,493.57
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures $ (19,779,250) $ (7,491,945.93)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In (endowment and earnings) $ 43,048,222
CASH BALANCE, June 30, 2019 $ 212,710,769 $ 212,710,768.56
CASH BALANCE, October 31, 2019 $ 235,979,741 $ 205,218,822.63

11/25/2019

54



